
 
 
 
 
 
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 

November 16, 2022 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



 Six Mile Creek  
  Community Development District 

  475 West Town Place 
             Suite 114  

  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
www.SixMileCreekCDD.com 

              
  

November 9, 2022 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District will be held Wednesday, November 16, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance World Golf 
Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Florida 32092.   
  
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments (regarding agenda items listed below) 
 
 III. Affidavit of Publication  
 
 IV. Approval of Minutes of the October 19, 2022 Meeting 
 
 V. Matters Related to Series 2022 Bonds and Assessment Hearing 
 
 VI. Consideration of Resolution 2023-02, Levying Master Assessment Lien for 2022 Bonds  
 
 VII. Ratification Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates for Fiscal Year 2022 Audit 
 
 VIII. Ratification of Fitness Lease (Trailmark Center) 
 
 IX. Consideration of Deed Conveying Common Area Parcels 
 
 X. Easement Regarding Traffic Signal 
 
 XI. Discussion of Disposal of Exiting Fitness Equipment 
 
 XII. Other Business 
 
 XIII. Staff Reports 



  A. Attorney  
 
  B. Engineer  

1. Consideration of Requisitions 163 
2020 Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A (East Parcel Phase 1) 
 
2. Consideration of Requisitions 163 - 167 
2021 Capital Improvement Review Bonds, Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 (Phases 
9 & 11) 
 
3. Consideration of Requisition 35 - 36 
2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Assessment Area 3, Phase 2 (Phase 
10) 
 
4. Consideration of Requisitions 83 - 90 
2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (AA2, Phase 3B) 
(East Parcel Phase 2) 
 
5. Ratification of Carter 
Environmental Services Proposal Pacetti 
Road Buffer Protected Tree Inventory 

 
  C. Manager  
 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager - Report 
 
 XIV. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 
 XV. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet as of October 31, 2022 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

for the Period Ending October 31, 2022 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Check Register 
 
 XVI. Next Scheduled Meeting – December 21, 2022 @ 2:00 p.m.  
 
 XVII. Adjournment 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  











 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
SIX MILE CREEK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, October 19, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance 

World Golf Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
  Gregg Kern Chairman 
  Mike Taylor  Vice Chairman 
  Darrin Glynn  Supervisor  
  Wendy Hartley Supervisor 
   
 
 Also, present were: 
 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber by phone District Counsel 
 Zach Brecht District Engineer 
 Alex Boyer  Operations Manager 
 Joe Cornelison Greenpoint 
 Samantha Hawkins Greenpoint  
 Stephanie Douglas 
  
  
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the October 19, 2022 Six Mile Creek 

Community Development District’s regular Board of Supervisor’s Meeting. 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. Four Supervisors were in attendance at 

the meeting constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 

 Mr. Oliver explained the comment protocol for audience comments and opened the floor 

to audience members. There were no audience comments.  



October 19, 2022   Six Mile Creek CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the September 21, 
2022 Meeting 

 Mr. Oliver asked for any comments or changes to the September 21, 2022 meeting minutes. 

The Board had no changes to the minutes. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the September 21, 2022 Meeting, were 
approved. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Resolution 2023-01, 
Delegated Award Resolution with Six Mile 
Investment Group, LLC 

 Mr. Haber reviewed the resolution and noted this relates to the issuance of bonds on 

property owner by a developer or builder. This will authorize the bond issuance in the phases 

identified in the resolution. This resolution will give authority to the Chair to proceed with 

marketing and other finalization of the bonds. He clarified this determines that only 2 phases will 

be issued now. This resolution authorizes and delegates authority for all 4 bonds and 3 phases. 

This gives authority of the Chair to approve all bond documents for all 3 bond issuances to be done 

2 phases.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
Resolution 2023-01, Delegated Award Resolution with Six Mile 
Investment Group, LLC, was approved. 

   

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Memorandum of 
Understanding  

 Mr. Haber stated this is an agreement between the District and the Developer to testify the 

terms under which the project will be completed and conveyed as identified in the Engineer’s 

report. There are three separate sections to included structure improvements that are being built by 

the District, it also includes infrastructure improvements that are constructed on property that is 

owned by the Developer. This agreement ensures the process will be followed. The other portion 

of the agreement talks about cooperation with the Developer for bond issuance.  

 



October 19, 2022   Six Mile Creek CDD 

3 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Kern, with all in favor, 
the Memorandum of Understanding, was approved. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report 

 Mr. Oliver stated the discussion of the issuance of these bonds for undeveloped assessment 

areas does not impact current residents. The Supplemental Assessment report is included in the 

agenda packet and pertain to assessment areas 3-3 and assessment area 2-3C. He noted at a later 

date the third assessment will have an assessment methodology but is not being considered today. 

He explained the various components of the report. Included in the report are documents that show 

the area being developed receives a special benefit. He noted the bonds being contemplated over 

a 30-year term and an estimated rate of about 6.5%. Assessment Area 2 Phase 3 is within the East 

parcel, and he describes the user fees that would be included. Mr. Oliver explained the true up 

process and noted the allocation is calculated at $15,879. He explained the tables included in the 

report. The Assessment Area 3-3 includes a plan for 203 units and the Section 2-3C is for 182 

units. For a total of 385 units. The costs estimates were totaled at $13,642,000. The bond proceeds 

are at $9,330,000. The usage of bonds construction funds are $6,757,143 in construction funds. 

This is a 30-year bond, and the capitalized interest will be active until November 1, 2023 and the 

bonds mature May 1, 2050. The benefits for the different product types 43, 53 and 63 lots. The 

benefits per unit are included at $58,000. He noted the annual assessment per unit were discussed.  

 Mr. Haber added this report is for the cost of the estimated bond issued and includes 

approval for the bonds. The Master Assessment Methodology will be included in the November 

agenda. He recommended approval in substantial form and authorizing the Chair to make any 

revisions that may be necessary prior to including the documents in the marketing documents.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in 
favor, the Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report 
and Authorizing the Chair to make revisions as necessary to market 
documents, was approved in substantial form. 

  

  



October 19, 2022   Six Mile Creek CDD 

4 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Construction Proposals 
for Amenity Center Expansion (supporting 
document to be provided under separate 
cover)  

 Mr. Oliver stated these will be tabled until a further meeting. Discussion included the 

construction proposals were put out for public bid and three bids were received last Thursday. 

Currently those are being reviewed internally and will be presented at the next Board meeting.  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Other Business 
 There being none, the next item followed.  

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 
A. Attorney  

 Mr. Haber noted there were no further reports.  

 

B. Engineer  
1. Consideration of Requisitions 161 – 162 2020 Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A 

(East Parcel Phase 1) 
2. Ratification of Requisition 155 2021 Capital Improvement Review Bonds, 

Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 (Phases 9 & 11) 
3. Consideration of Requisitions 156 – 162 2021 Capital Improvement Review 

Bonds, Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 (Phases 9 & 11) 
4. Consideration of Requisitions 31 – 34 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue 

Bonds, Assessment Area 3, Phase 2 (Phase 10) 
5. Ratification of Requisition No. 75 2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding 

Revenue Bonds (AA2, Phase 3B) (East Parcel Phase 2) 
6. Consideration of Requisitions 76 – 82 2021 Capital Improvement and 

Refunding Revenue Bonds (AA2, Phase 3B) (East Parcel Phase 2) 
Mr. Brecht reviewed the requisitions to be considered by the Board. He added the total is 

$2,508,854.41.  

  

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in 
favor, the Requisition Summary, was approved as presented.  
  

7. Revised Change Orders #3 & #4 for ratification 
Mr. Brecht reviewed the change orders to be considered by the Board. It was noted an error 

was found in the last change order #3 with the contract. The new change order #3 revised for the 



October 19, 2022   Six Mile Creek CDD 

5 

additional import of fill on the east parcel Phase 2 project. He stated it is now $668,912.64. He 

added it is $20,000 less than before. He added this was approved by the Chair and needs 

ratification.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
Change Order #3, was ratified.  
 

 Mr. Brecht reviewed the change order #4 was a credit received. The credit is $63,896.40.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Kern, with all in favor, 
Change Order #4, was ratified.  
  

8. Change Order #5 for consideration   
Mr. Brecht reviewed the requisitions to be considered by the Board. He added this is to 

install the electric conduit within the East parcel Phase 2 and the total is $777.25.  

  

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
Change Order #5, was approved. 
  

9. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 60 Amendment No. 2 
Mr. Brecht stated this work authorization was for revision to the plans to accommodate 

some changes and totals $39,875. 

  

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in 
favor, Work Authorization No. 60, Amendment No. 2, was approved.  
  

10. Work Authorization No. 70 for consideration 
Mr. Brecht stated this work authorization is for a Utility Management contract. He added 

this is an hourly contract for a total budget of $180,940.00. 

  

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
Work Authorization No. 70, was approved.  

 

 



October 19, 2022   Six Mile Creek CDD 

6 

C. Manager  
 Mr. Oliver stated the general election will be held on November 8th. He added that they 

cannot assume office until 14 days after the election. So, the earliest they can assume office is on 

November 22nd, which is after their next meeting. The new members will be seated at the 

December meeting. He added it is scheduled for December 21st and he will reach out about another 

date.  

 

D. Operations / Amenity Manager – Report 
 Ms. Hawkins reviewed the events to include the fall festival. Mr. Boyer updated the Board 

on current projects to include gym equipment, and the fob system,  

 Mr. Boyer discussed the pond algae problems and proposals for and aerator and fountain 

options for pond. He noted the project costs was just over $12,000. It was asked about doing a 

combination and Mr. Boyer noted the electrical system would not have the capability for both. It 

was clarified they have a 3-year warranty and there would be no additional costs unless there was 

maintenance issue. Discussion ensued on the treatments completed to this point and may prove 

effective. Timelines were discussed for fountain installation. Mr. Kern noted he was in favor of 

allowing the current treatment to take care of the issue and not necessarily look at going with the 

fountains for esthetics. This item was deferred for reevaluation at a later date.  

  

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisor’s Requests and Audience  
    Comments 
 There were no Supervisor comments. An audience member commented on the dirty pond 

with the black barrier. Mr. Kern noted this was work with DreamFinders and they were trying to 

find an answer to erosion control and washouts. Discussion ensued on wells, and they were 

regulated by the HOA.  

  

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Financial Reports 
A. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2022 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for 

the Period Ending September 30, 2022 
 Mr. Oliver presented the financials through September 30, 2022 to the Board.  

 

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 Mr. Oliver noted that they were fully collected at this time. 



October 19, 2022   Six Mile Creek CDD 

7 

C. Check Register 
 Mr. Oliver presented the check register and asked for a motion to approve. There were 2 

questions. On page 3 of 3 on in September TrailMark Phase 2 and street signs. Page 3 of 5 fitness 

product clarification was for deposit.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
the Check Register, was approved.  

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Next Scheduled Meeting – November 16,  
    2022 at 2:00 p.m. 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the next regular meeting date will be November 16, 2022, at 2:00 

p.m. at their current location.  

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
the meeting was adjourned.  

 
 
 
 

________________________   _____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



1 

RESOLUTION 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND CONFIRMING 
DISTRICT PROJECTS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND/OR ACQUISITION 
OF INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS; EQUALIZING, 
APPROVING, CONFIRMING, AND LEVYING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
TO SECURE ITS SERIES 2022 BONDS (AREA 2, PHASE 3C, AREA 3, 
PHASE 3, AND AREA 3 PHASE 4) ON PROPERTY SPECIALLY 
BENEFITED BY SUCH PROJECTS TO PAY THE COST THEREOF; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND THE COLLECTION OF SUCH 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BY THE METHODS PROVIDED FOR BY 
CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES; CONFIRMING 
THE DISTRICT'S INTENTION TO ISSUE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 
BONDS; MAKING PROVISIONS FOR TRANSFERS OF REAL 
PROPERTY TO GOVERNMENTAL BODIES; PROVIDING FOR THE 
RECORDING OF AN ASSESSMENT NOTICE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (“District”) was established 
by Rule 42GGG-1 of the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission, pursuant to the 
Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as 
amended (the “Act”), and is validly existing under the constitution and laws of the State of 
Florida; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purpose, among others, of 
planning, financing, acquiring, constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain 
infrastructure, including roadways, stormwater management systems, water and sewer systems, 
recreation and security improvements, and other infrastructure within or without the boundaries 
of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in July 2007, the District issued its $47,820,000 in aggregate principal amount of 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “Original Bonds”), to finance the design, construction, and/or 
acquisition of the 2007 Project (as hereinafter defined) necessitated by development within the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements and facilities financed, in part, by the Original 
Bonds are more specifically described and identified in the District’s Improvement Plan for the 
Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds dated December 1, 2006 (the “Master Project Report”), as 
supplemented by the District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital 



2 

Improvements dated May 25, 2007 (the “2007 Project Report”), adopted and confirmed by the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolutions 2007-12, 2007-13, 2007-18, and 2007-24 (collectively 
the “Original Assessment Resolutions”), the District imposed special assessments (the “Original 
Assessments”) on developable real property within the boundaries of the District that specially 
benefits from the 2007 Project as described in the Series 2007 Assessment Resolutions and as set 
forth in the District’s Special Assessment Master Methodology Report dated March 30, 2007 (the 
“Master Assessment Report”), as supplemented by the District’s Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report, Final Numbers dated June 28, 2007 (the “First Supplemental 
Assessment Report”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the adoption of the Original Assessment Resolutions resulted in the imposition 
of a master lien against all the property within the District’s boundaries benefitting from the 
improvements described in the Master Project Report, as amended (the “Master Assessment 
Lien”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 15, 2014, the District adopted Resolution 2015-03, which authorized 
the bifurcation of the Original Bonds (the “Bifurcation Resolution”) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bifurcation Resolution, (i) a portion of the Original Bonds in the 
principal amount of $3,140,000 were exchanged for $3,140,000 in principal amount of the 
District’s Series 2014A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (the “Series 2014A Bonds”); and (ii) 
a portion of the Original Bonds in the principal amount of $42,700,000 were exchanged for 
$42,700,000 in principal amount of the District’s Series 2007 Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds (the “Series 2007 Bonds” and, together with the Series 2014A Bonds, the “Bifurcated 
Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Bifurcation, on October 15, 2014 the District also 
adopted Resolution 2015-04 (the “Bifurcation Assessment Resolution”), adopting the Second 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Capital Improvement Bonds Series 
2014A and Series 2007 dated October 15, 2014 (the “Bifurcation Assessment Report”), which 
created two separate assessment areas, the Series 2014A Assessment Area and the Series 2007 
Assessment Area, for the purpose of securing the Series 2014A Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds 
respectively (the “Bifurcation Assessments”); and     
 
 WHEREAS, Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, the primary owner of lands within the 
District (the “Landowner”) and the Owners of the Bifurcated Bonds determined that it was in 
their best interest to refund the Series 2014A Bonds with the Series 2015 Refunding Bonds (the 
“2015 Refunding Bonds”), and, in connection with the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds, to 
restructure the Bifurcation Assessments in order to secure debt service for both the 2015 
Refunding Bonds and the Series 2007 Bonds; and  
 



3 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2015 Refunding Bonds and the 
restructure of the Bifurcation Assessments, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) 
adopted Resolutions 2015-13 and 2015-19, which levied the assessments restructuring the 
Bifurcation Assessments (the “Restructured Assessments”) and ratified and approved the 
completed and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging 
or extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements 
described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report and the Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2014 Capital 
Improvements dated November 12, 2014 (the “2014 Project Report”);  

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the Restructured Assessments and the issuance 

of the 2015 Refunding Bonds, the District approved its Final Special Assessment Methodology 
Report for the 2015 Refunding Bonds and the Remaining 2007 Bonds dated November 14, 2014 
(the “Refunding Report”); and  
 

Whereas, the District, Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds determined 
that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $7,315,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A and its $6,720,000 Six 
Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B 
(collectively the “2016 Bonds”) to finance the acquisition and construction of an additional 
portion of the Improvements (as hereinafter defined), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the 
Master Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments to secure the 2016 Bonds (the 
“2016 Assessments”); and 
 

Whereas, in connection with the issuance of the 2016 Bonds, the Board adopted 
Resolution 2016-07, which levied the 2016 Assessments and ratified and approved the completed 
and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or 
extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements 
described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2014 Project and the Six 
Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2016 
Capital Improvements dated April 12, 2016 (the  “2016 Project Report”);  
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2016 Assessments and the issuance of the 
2016 Bonds, the District approved its Final Numbers Special Assessment Methodology Report for 
the Series 2016A and 2016B Capital Improvement Bonds dated April 22, 2016 (the “2016 
Assessment Report”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds 

determined that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $10,620,000 Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A 
(Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) and its $3,980,000 Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) to refund 
certain portions of the Series 2016 Bonds and finance the acquisition and construction of an 



4 

additional portion of the Improvements (collectively the “2017 Bonds”), and accordingly 
confirmed the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments to secure 
the 2017 Bonds (the “2017 Assessments”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2017 Bonds, the Board adopted 

Resolution 2017-16, which levied the 2017 Assessments and ratified and approved the completed 
and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or 
extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements 
described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 
2016 Project Report and the Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental 
Engineer’s Report for Series 2017 Capital Improvements dated October 27, 2017 (the “2017 
Project Report”); 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2017 Assessments and the issuance of the 

2017 Bonds, the District approved its Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for 
the Series 2017A and 2017B Capital Improvement Bonds Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2) dated 
November 14, 2017 (the “2017 Assessment Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds 
determined that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $7,020,000 Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 
2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) to refund certain portions of the Series 2016B Bonds and 
finance the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the Improvements (the “2020 
Bonds”), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levied and 
allocated assessments to secure the 2020 Bonds (the “2020 Assessments”); and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2020 Bonds, the Board adopted 
Resolution 2020-09, which levied the 2020 Assessments and ratified and approved the completed 
and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or 
extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements 
described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 
2016 Project Report, the 2017 Report, and the Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2020 Capital Improvements dated June 2, 2020 (the 
“2020 Project Report”); 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2020 Assessments and the issuance of the 
2020 Bonds, the District approved its Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Capital Improvement Revenue and 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) dated June 12, 2020 (the “2020 
Assessment Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds 
determined that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $11,340,000 Six Mile Creek 



5 

Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment 
Area 3, Phase 1) to finance the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of the 
Improvements (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds”), and accordingly confirmed the levy of the 
Master Assessment Lien and levied and allocated assessments to secure the 2021 Area 3, Phase 
1 Bonds (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments”); and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds, the Board 
adopted Resolution 2021-06, which levied the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments and ratified and 
approved the completed and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, 
construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the 
public improvements described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 
Project Report, the 2016 Project Report, the 2017 Project Report, the 2020 Project Report, and 
the Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 
2021 Capital Improvements dated January 19, 2021 (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Project Report”); 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Assessments and the 
issuance of the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Bonds, the District approved its The Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the 
Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) dated February 10, 
2021 and Six Mile Creek Community Development District Second Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) dated September 14, 2021 (together, the “2021 Area 3, Phase 1 
Assessment Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner and the Owners of the Series 2007 Bonds 
determined that it was in their best interests for the District issue its $8,250,000 Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 
2021 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3B) (the “2021 Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds”) and $2,640,000 Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 
(Assessment Area 3, Phase 2) (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 2 Bonds”) to refund certain portions of 
the Series 2016B Bonds and finance the acquisition and construction of an additional portion of 
the Improvements, and accordingly confirmed the levy of the Master Assessment Lien and levied 
and allocated assessments to secure the 2021 Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds (the “2021 Area 2, Phase 
3B Assessments”) and the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2 Bonds (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 2 Assessments”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2021 Area 2, Phase 3 Bonds and the 2021 

Area 3, Phase 2B Bonds, the Board adopted Resolution 2022-01, which levied the 2021 Area 2, 
Phase 3B Assessments and the 2021 Area 3, Phase 2 Assessments, and ratified and approved the 
completed and on-going undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging 
or extending, equipping, acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the public improvements 
described in the Master Project Report, the 2007 Project Report, the 2015 Project Report, the 
2016 Project Report, the 2017 Project Report, the 2020 Project Report, the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 



6 

Project Report, and the Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineer’s 
Report for Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Capital Improvements dated September 10, 2021 (the 
“2021 Area 2, Phase 3B/Area 3, Phase 2 Project Report”); 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the levy of the 2021 Area 2, Phase 3B Assessments and the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2 Assessments, and the issuance of the 2021 Area 2, Phase 3B Bonds and the 
2021 Area 3, Phase 2 Bonds, the District approved its Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2) and Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) 
dated September 15, 2021 and Six Mile Creek Community Development District First 
Supplemental to the Adjunct Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 
2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2) and Assessment Area 2 
(Phase 3B) dated July 20, 2022 (together, the “2021 Area 2, Phase 3B/Area 3 Phase 2 Assessment 
Report”); and  
 

WHEREAS, District and the Landowner have determined that it is in their best interests for 
the District to issue its Series 2022 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (Assessment Area 2, 
Phase 3C, Assessment Area 3, Phase 3, and Assessment Area 3, Phase 4) (the “2022 Bonds”) to 
refund certain portions of the Series 2016B Bonds and finance the acquisition and construction 
of an additional portion of the Improvements (the “2022 Project”) as described in more detail in 
that certain Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineers Report for 
Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Capital Improvements dated September 2, 2022 (the “2022 
Project Report”), attached here to as Exhibit A, and accordingly to confirm the levy of the Master 
Assessment Lien and levy and allocate assessments to secure the 2022 Bonds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the 2022 Bonds will be used in part to finance, acquire or 
construct improvements for Assessment Area 2, Phase 3C, Assessment Area 3, Phase 3 Area, and 
Assessment Area 3, Phase 4 portions of the development (the “2022 Assessment Area”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2022 Bonds will be secured by the 2022 Assessments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2022 Assessments make up a portion of the Master Assessment Lien; 

however, in light of the bifurcation and refunding and subsequent bond issuances described 
herein, the District has chosen to adopt resolutions declaring assessments and to hold public 
hearings in connection with the levy and allocation of assessments securing the 2022 Bonds; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District desires to ratify and approve the completed and on-going 
undertaking, installation, planning, establishing, construction, enlarging or extending, equipping, 
acquiring, operating, and/or maintaining the Improvements described in Exhibit A; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that benefits have accrued and will continue to 
accrue to the property improved, the amount of those benefits, and that special assessments will 
be made in proportion to the benefits received as set forth in the District’s Master Assessment 



7 

Report, First Supplemental Assessment Report, Bifurcation Assessment Report, Refunding 
Report, 2016 Assessment Report, 2017 Assessment Report, 2020 Assessment Report, 2021 Area 
3, Phase1A Assessment Report, 2021 Area 2, Phase 3B/Area 3 Phase 2 Assessment Report 
(together, the “Prior Assessment Reports”), and the Supplemental Special Assessment 
Methodology Report for the Series 2022 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 
Phase 3 (Unit 12) and Phase 4 9Unit 13), Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C (EP3) dated September 9, 
2022 (the “ 2022 Assessment Report”), which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated 
herein by reference, and on file at Governmental Management Services, 475 West Town Place, 
Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District Records Office”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that the 2022 Assessments to be levied will not 

exceed the benefits to the property improved; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) has noticed and conducted a 
public hearing pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes, relating to the 
imposition, levy, collection, and enforcement of such assessments; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to pay the cost of the Improvements, 
including the 2022 Project, through the levy of special assessments, including the 2022 
Assessments, pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and 197, Florida Statutes; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted pursuant to 

Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, including without limitation, Section 170.08, Florida 
Statutes. 
 

SECTION 2.  FINDINGS.  The Board hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 

(a)  The District is a local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing under 
and pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended. 

 
(b)  The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to finance, fund, plan, 

establish, acquire, install, equip, operate, extend, construct, or reconstruct roadways, water and 
sewer, storm water management systems, landscape and hardscape, recreational facilities, 
security features, and other infrastructure projects and services necessitated by the development 
of, and serving lands within, the District. 
 

(c)  The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to levy and impose special 
assessments to pay all, or any part of, the cost of such infrastructure projects and services and to 
issue special assessment bonds payable from such special assessments as provided in Chapters 



8 

170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes. 
 
(d)  It is necessary to the public health, safety and welfare and in the best interests of the 

District that (i) the District provide the Improvements, including the 2022 Project, the nature and 
location of which was initially described in Resolution 2022-22 and is shown in the Engineer’s 
Report, and which Improvements plans and specifications are on file in the District Records 
Office; (ii) the cost of the Improvements, including the 2022 Project be assessed against the lands 
specially benefited by the Improvements; and (iii) the District issue bonds to provide funds for 
such purposes pending the receipt of such special assessments. 
 

(e)  The provision of the Improvements, including the 2022 Project, the levying of 2022 
Assessments, and the sale and issuance of the 2022 Bonds serves a proper, essential, and valid 
public purpose and is in the best interests of the District, its landowners, and residents. 
 

(f)  In order to provide funds with which to pay the costs of the Improvements, including 
the 2022 Project, which are to be assessed against the benefitted properties more particularly 
described in the 2022 Assessment Report, pending the collection of the 2022 Assessments, it is 
necessary for the District from time to time to sell and issue its bonds, in one or more series, 
including, but not limited to the 2022 Bonds. 
 

(g)  By Resolution 2022-22, the Board determined to provide the Improvements, including 
the 2022 Project, and to defray the costs thereof by levying the 2022 Assessments on benefited 
property more particularly described in the 2022 Assessment Report, and expressed an intention 
to issue the 2022 Bonds to provide the funds needed for the Improvements, including the 2022 
Project, prior to the collection of the 2022 Assessments.  Resolution 2022-22 was adopted in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 170.03, Florida Statutes, and prior to the time it 
was adopted, the requirements of Section 170.04, Florida Statutes, had been met. 
 

(h)  As directed by Resolution 2022-22, said Resolution 2022-22 was published as required 
by Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the publisher's affidavit of publication is on file 
with the Secretary of the Board. 
 

(i)  As directed by Resolution 2022-22, a preliminary assessment roll was adopted and 
filed with the Board as required by Section 170.06, Florida Statutes. 
 

(j)  As required by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, upon completion of the preliminary 
assessment roll, the Board adopted Resolution 2022-23 fixing the time and place of a public 
hearing at which owners of the property to be assessed and other persons interested therein 
could appear before the Board and be heard as to (1) the propriety and advisability of making 
the Improvements, including the 2022 Project, (2) the cost thereof, (3) the manner of payment 
therefor, and (4) the amount thereof to be assessed against each specially benefited property or 
parcel more particularly described in the 2022 Assessment Report, and provided for publication 
of notice of such public hearing and individual mailed notice in accordance with Chapters 170, 



9 

190 and 197, Florida Statutes. 
 

(k)  Notice of such public hearing was given by publication and also by mail as required by 
Section 170.07, Florida Statutes.  Affidavits as to such publications and mailings are on file in the 
office of the Secretary of the Board. 
 

(l)  On November 16, 2022, at the time and place specified in the resolution and notice 
referred to in paragraph (j) above, the Board met as an Equalization Board and heard and 
considered all complaints and testimony as to the matters described in paragraph (i) above.  The 
Board has made such modifications in the preliminary assessment roll as it deems necessary, just, 
and right in the making of the final assessment roll. 
 

(m)  Having considered the estimated costs of the Improvements, including the 2022 
Project, estimates of financing costs and all complaints and evidence presented at such public 
hearing, the Board of Supervisors of the District further finds and determines: 
 

(i)  that the estimated costs of the Improvements, including the 2022 Project, are 
as specified in the 2022 Project Report , attached as Exhibit A hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, which 2022 Project Report is hereby 
adopted and approved, and that the amount of such costs is reasonable and 
proper; and 

 
(ii) it is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the cost of the Improvements, 
including the 2022 Project, against the properties specially benefited thereby as 
more particularly described in the 2022 Assessment Report using the method 
determined by the Board set forth in the Assessment Report and the 2022 
Assessment Report attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this 
reference, which results in the special assessments set forth on the final 
assessment roll; and 

 
(iii) it is hereby declared that the Improvements, including the 2022 Project, 
continue, to and will constitute a special benefit to all parcels of real property 
listed on said final assessment roll and that the benefit, in the case of each such 
parcel, is equal to or in excess of the assessments, including the 2022 Assessments, 
thereon when allocated as set forth in Exhibit B; and 

 
(iv) it is in the best interests of the District that the 2022 Assessments be paid and 
collected as herein provided. 

 
SECTION 3.  AUTHORIZATION OF DISTRICT PROJECT.  The Improvements, including the 

2022 Project are hereby authorized and approved and the proper officers, employees and/or 
agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to take such further action as may be 
necessary or desirable to cause the same to be made. 



10 

 
SECTION 4.  ESTIMATED COST OF THE PROJECT.  The total estimated costs of the 

Improvements, including the 2022 Project, and the costs to be paid by the 2022 Assessments on 
all specially benefitted property more particularly described in the 2022 Assessment Report, are 
set forth in Exhibits A and B, respectively, hereto. 
 

SECTION 5.  EQUALIZATION, APPROVAL, CONFIRMATION AND LEVY OF SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS.  The 2022 Assessments on parcels more particularly described in the 2022 
Assessment Report specially benefited by the Improvements, including the 2022 Project, all as 
specified in the final assessment roll set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto, are hereby equalized, 
approved, confirmed, and levied.  Immediately following the adoption of this Resolution, the 
2022 Assessments, as reflected in the 2022 Assessment Report, attached hereto as part of Exhibit 
B, shall be recorded by the Secretary of the Board of the District in a special book, to be known 
as the “Improvement Lien Book.”  The 2022 Assessments or assessments against each respective 
parcel shown on such final assessment roll and interest, costs and penalties thereon, as hereafter 
provided, shall be and shall remain a legal, valid, and binding first lien on such parcel until paid 
and such lien shall be coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other 
governmental taxes and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.  Prior to the 
issuance of any bonds, including refunding bonds, the District may, by subsequent resolution, 
adjust the acreage assigned to particular parcel identification numbers listed on the final 
assessment roll to reflect accurate apportionment of acreage within the District amongst 
individual parcel identification numbers. The District may make any other such acreage and 
boundary adjustments to parcels listed on the final assessment roll as may be necessary in the 
best interests of the District as determined by the Board by subsequent resolution.  Any such 
adjustment in the assessment roll shall be consistent with the requirements of law.  In the event 
the issuance of bonds, including refunding bonds, by the District would result in a decrease of 
the 2022 Assessments, then the District shall by subsequent resolution, adopted within sixty (60) 
days of the sale of such bonds at a publicly noticed meeting and without the need for further 
public hearing, evidence such a decrease and amend the final assessment roll as shown in the 
Improvement Lien Book to reflect such a decrease. Prior to the issuance of the 2022 Bonds, the 
District shall adopt a supplemental assessment resolution.  Such subsequent resolution shall be 
adopted at a noticed meeting of the District, and shall set forth the actual amounts financed, 
costs of issuance, expected costs of collection, and the total amount of the assessments pledged 
to that issue, which amount shall be consistent with the lien imposed by this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 6.  FINALIZATION OF ASSESSMENTS.  When all of the Improvements have both 
been constructed or otherwise provided to the satisfaction of the Board, the Board shall adopt a 
resolution accepting the same and determining the actual costs (including financing costs) 
thereof, as required by Sections 170.08 and 170.09, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, regarding completion of a project funded by a particular 
series of bonds, the District shall credit to each assessment the difference, if any, between the 
assessments, including the 2022 Assessments, as applicable, as hereby made, approved, and 
confirmed and the actual costs incurred in completing the Improvements.  In making such credits, 



11 

no credit shall be given for bond financing costs, capitalized interest, funded reserves, or bond 
discounts.  Such credits, if any, shall be entered in the Improvement Lien Book.  Once the final 
amount of the assessments for all of the Improvements have been determined, the term 
“Assessment” shall, with respect to each parcel, mean the sum of the costs of the Improvements.  
 

SECTION 7.  PAYMENT OF 2022 ASSESSMENTS AND METHOD OF COLLECTION. 
 
 (a)  The 2022 Assessments may be paid in not more than thirty (30) substantially equal 
consecutive annual installments of principal and interest.  Unless otherwise waived, 2022 
Assessments may be paid in full without interest at any time within thirty (30) days after the 
completion of the Improvements and the adoption by the Board of a resolution accepting the 
Improvements; provided, however, that the Board shall at any time make such adjustments by 
resolution, at a noticed meeting of the Board, to that payment schedule as may be necessary and 
in the best interests of the District to account for changes in long and short term debt as actually 
issued by the District.  At any time subsequent to thirty (30) days after the Improvements have 
been completed and a resolution accepting the Improvements has been adopted by the Board, 
the 2022 Assessments may be prepaid in full including interest amounts to the next succeeding 
interest payment date or to the second succeeding interest payment date if such a prepayment 
is made within forty-five (45) calendar days before an interest payment date. The owner of 
property subject to the 2022 Assessments may prepay the entire remaining balance of the 2022  
Assessments at any time, or a portion of the remaining balance of the 2022 Assessments if there 
is also paid, in addition to the prepaid principal balance of the 2022 Assessments, an amount 
equal to the interest that would otherwise be due on such prepaid amount on the next 
succeeding interest payment date, or, if prepaid during the forty-five day period preceding such 
interest payment date, to the interest payment date following such next succeeding interest 
payment date.  Prepayment of 2022 Assessments does not entitle the property owner to any 
discounts for early payment.  

 
 (b)  The District may elect to use the method of collecting the 2022 Assessments 
authorized by Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes (the “Uniform Method”). The 
District has heretofore taken necessary actions to comply with the provisions of said Sections 
197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes.  The 2022 Assessments may be subject to all of the 
collection provisions of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes.  Notwithstanding the above, in the event 
the Uniform Method of collecting its 2022 Assessments is not available to the District in any year, 
or if determined by the District to be in its best interests, and subject to the terms of the 
Indenture, the 2022 Assessments may be collected as is otherwise permitted by law.  In 
particular, the District may, in its sole discretion, collect the 2022 Assessments by directly billing 
landowners and enforcing said collection in any manner authorized by law.  Any prejudgment 
interest on delinquent assessments that are directly billed shall accrue at the applicable rate of 
any bonds or other debt instruments secured by the 2022 Assessments.  The decision to collect 
2022 Assessments by any particular method – e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill – does not mean 
that such method will be used to collect 2022 Assessments in future years, and the District 
reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, regardless 



12 

of past practices.  
 

(c)  For each year the District uses the Uniform Method, the District shall enter into an 
agreement with the Tax Collector of St. Johns County who may notify each owner of a lot or 
parcel within the District of the amount of the special assessment, including interest thereon, in 
the manner provided in Section 197.3635, Florida Statutes. 
 

SECTION 8.  APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.   
 

 (a)  There may be required from time to time certain true-up payments as specified in the 
2022 Assessment Report.  As parcels of land or lots subject to the 2022 Assessments are platted, 
the 2022 Assessments securing the 2022 Bonds shall be allocated as set forth in the 2022 
Assessment Report.  In furtherance thereof, at such time as parcels or land or lots are platted, it 
shall be an express condition of the lien established by this Resolution that any and all initial plats 
of any portion of the lands within the District, as the District’s boundaries may be amended from 
time to time, shall be presented to the District Manager for review, approval, and calculation of 
the percentage of acres and numbers of units which will be, after the plat, considered to be 
developed.  No further action by the Board of Supervisors shall be required. The District’s review 
shall be limited solely to this function and the enforcement of the lien established by this 
Resolution.  The District Manager shall cause the 2022 Assessments to be reallocated to the units 
being platted and the remaining property subject to the 2022 Assessments in accordance with 
the 2022 Assessment Report, cause such reallocation to be recorded in the District’s 
Improvement Lien Book, and shall perform the true-up calculations described in the 2022 
Assessment Report, which process is incorporated herein as if fully set forth.  Any resulting true-
up payment shall become due and payable that tax year by the landowner(s) of record of the 
remaining property, in addition to the regular assessment installment payable with respect to 
the remaining developable acres.   
 
 (b)  The District will take all necessary steps to ensure that true-up payments are made in 
a timely fashion to ensure its debt service obligations are met.  The District shall record all true-
up payments in its Improvement Lien Book. 
 
 (c)  The foregoing is also based on the District's understanding with Landowner that it 
intends to develop the unit numbers and types shown in the 2022 Assessment Report, on the 
property subject to the 2022 Assessments and is intended to provide a formula to ensure that 
the appropriate ratio of the 2022 Assessments to unplatted acres is maintained if fewer units are 
developed.  However, no action by the District prohibits more than the maximum units shown in 
the 2022 Assessment Report from being developed.  In no event shall the District collect 2022 
Assessments pursuant to this Resolution in excess of the total debt service related to the 2022 
Bonds, including all costs of financing and interest.  The District recognizes that such events as 
regulatory requirements and market conditions may affect the timing and scope of the 
development in the District.  If the strict application of the True-Up Methodology to any 
assessment reallocation pursuant to this paragraph would result in 2022 Assessments collected 



13 

in excess of the District's total debt service obligation for the 2022 Bonds, the Board shall by 
resolution take appropriate action to equitably reallocate the 2022 Assessments, as applicable.  
Further, upon the District’s review of the final plat for the property subject to the 2022 
Assessments, any unallocated 2022 Assessments, as applicable, shall become due and payable 
and must be paid prior to the District’s approval of that plat.  
 
 (d)  The application of the monies received from true-up payments or assessments to the 
actual debt service obligations of the District, whether long term or short term, shall be set forth 
in the supplemental assessment resolution adopted for the 2022 Bonds.  Such subsequent 
resolution shall be adopted at a noticed meeting of the District, and shall set forth the actual 
amounts financed, costs of issuance, expected costs of collection, and the total amount of the 
assessments pledged to that issue, which amount shall be consistent with the lien imposed by 
this Resolution.   
 

SECTION 9. GOVERNMENT PROPERTY; TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO UNITS OF LOCAL, 
STATE, AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT.  Property owned by units of local, state, and federal 
government shall not be subject to the 2022 Assessments without specific consent thereto.  In 
addition, property owned by a property owners association or homeowners association that is 
exempt from special assessments under Florida law shall not be subject to the 2022 Assessments.  
If at any time, any real property on which 2022 Assessments are imposed by this Resolution is 
sold or otherwise transferred to a unit of local, state, or federal government (without consent of 
such governmental unit to the imposition of 2022 Assessments, thereon), all future unpaid 2022 
Assessments for such tax parcel shall become due and payable immediately prior to such transfer 
without any further action of the District. 
 

SECTION 10.  ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to record 
a general Notice of Assessments in the Official Records of St. Johns County, Florida, which shall 
be updated from time to time in a manner consistent with changes in the boundaries of the 
District.   
 

SECTION 11.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this Resolution be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of 
a section of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears 
that such other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent 
upon the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 12.  CONFLICTS.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the 
extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 
 

SECTION 13.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of November , 2022. 
 



14 

      SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY  
      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
  
 
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
       
 
Exhibit A: Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineers Report for 
Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Capital Improvements dated September 2, 2022  
 
Exhibit B: Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2022 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 3 (Unit 12) and Phase 4 9Unit 13), 
Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C (EP3) dated September 9, 2022  



SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEERS REPORT
For

SERIES 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Prepared for

Board of Supervisors
Six Mile Creek

Community Development District

Prepared by

14775 Old St. Augustine Road
Jacksonville, Florida 32258

904-642-8990

E 22-264                                                                                                   September 2, 2022



September 2, 2022

Mr. Gregg Kern
Chairman, Board of Supervisors
Six Mile Community Development District
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, Florida  32092

Reference: Supplemental Addendum to the Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006

Dear Mr. Kern:

Pursuant to your request, England, Thims & Miller, Inc. has prepared the enclosed report in an effort to provide
information regarding the anticipated capital improvements to be funded in the year 2021.  This report is a supplement to
the adopted Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, and the Supplemental Engineer’s Reports
dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016, June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017, June 3, 2020, January 19, 2021,
and September 10, 2021.

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or comments regarding this report.

Sincerely,

ENGLAND, THIMS & MILLER, INC.

Scott A. Wild, P.E.
Executive Vice President/Shareholder

SAW/shb

Enclosures



Page 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Six Mile Creek Community Development District (The “Six Mile Creek CDD” or the
“District”) is a 1,289 ± acre community development district located in St. Johns County, Florida.
(Refer to Plate 1, location map).  The land within the District consists of a parcel within the Saint
Johns DRI, referred to herein as the “South Tract”.  The authorized land uses within the District
include residential development as well as substantial open space and recreational amenities.  The
full development within the Six Mile Creek CDD boundaries is anticipated to include
approximately:

TYPE Acreage
Acres

Residential
Units

Residential 780± 2278
Amenity Village 7±
Community Park 30±
Neighborhood Parks System 17±
Wetlands 357±
Upland Buffer 98±
TOTALS 1289± 2278

(Refer to Plate 2 for the map of the District boundaries and Plate 3 for legal description of the District.)

In anticipation of development within its boundaries, on March 30, 2007 the District adopted its
Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, describing master and neighborhood infrastructure
improvements the District intended to finance (or advance finance), construct, install and/or
acquire within and adjacent to the boundaries of the District.  Subsequently, the District adopted
the Supplemental Engineer’s Reports dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016,
June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017, June 3, 2020, January 19, 2021, and September 10, 2021.  The
purpose of this report is to supplement the existing Improvement Plan and Supplemental
Engineer’s Reports in an effort to identify infrastructure improvements that will be funded in
whole or part with proceeds from the issuance of the Six Mile Creek Community Development
District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 AA2-3C,
AA3-3 & AA3-4 related to the next phase of development within the District.1 The proposed
infrastructure improvements are within Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C), referred to as East Parcel
Phase 3 within the TrailMark development, Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3), referred to as Phase 12
with the TrailMark development, and Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4), referred to as Phase 13 within
the TrailMark development. The anticipated costs to construct and/or install the Series 2022 AA2-
3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project are set forth in Tables 1A, 1B and 1C.



Page 2

The unit distributions for previous assessment areas are as follows:

Assessment Area 1    Assessment Area 2 (Phase 1) Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2)
43’ lots 27    43’ lots 160 43’ lots   69
53’lots 25    53’ lots   63 53’ lots 216
63’lots 81    70’ lots   21 63’ lots   34
70’ lots 19    80’ lots   61 70’ lots     8
Total  Lots      152    Total Lots              305 80’ lots   74

Total Lots 401

Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3A)    Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1A)          Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1B)
43’ Lots 57     43’ Lots 76             43’ Lots 107
53’ Lots 62     53’ Lots 74             53’ Lots   61
63’ Lots 62     63’ Lots 45             Total Lots              168
Total Lots            181             Total Lots            195

Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B)    Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2)
43’ Lots 91     63’ Lots 75
53’ Lots 83     Total Lots              75
63’ Lots 41
Total Lots            215

The anticipated unit distribution for the Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Bonds is as follows:

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2022
AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Bonds

Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C)
2022 AA2-3B, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Bonds

(Series 2022 AA2-3B, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)
Lot Size (Feet) Number

43 71
53 78
63 33

TOTAL 182

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2022
AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Bonds

Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3)
2022 AA2-3B, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Bonds

(Series 2022 AA2-3B, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)
Lot Size (Feet) Number

43 119
53 64
63 20

TOTAL 203



Page 3

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2022
AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Bonds

Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4)
2022 AA2-3B, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Bonds

(Series 2022 AA2-3B, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)
Lot Size (Feet) Number

43 93
53 87
63 15

TOTAL 195

In comparison with the Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer’s Reports, the Master and
Neighborhood Infrastructure costs have been updated to present the estimated cost for the Series
2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project.

Plate 4 depicts the limits and area for Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C), Assessment Area 3 (Phase
3), and Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4).  It also depicts the currently anticipated lot mix and total unit
count for and Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C), Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3), and Assessment Area
3 (Phase 4).  Plate 5 provide the legal description for Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C).  Plates 6 &
6A provide the legal description for Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3). Plates 7 & 7A provide the legal
description for Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4).

The limits of Assessment Area 1, Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2, 3A, 3B, and 3C), and
Assessment Area 3 (Phases 1A, 1B, 2, 3, and 4) are also depicted on Plate 4, together with the
existing lot mix and total unit count within Assessment Area 1, Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2,
3A, and 3B), and Assessment Area 3 (Phases 1A,1B, and 2).



t:\2022\22-264\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

1

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The following sections of this report describe those Master Infrastructure Improvements that benefit Assessment
Area 1, Assessment Area 2, Phases 1 through 3C, and Assessment Area 3, Phases 1A through 4, Project areas.
These include transportation and miscellaneous other improvements, such as common area landscape/hardscape
and a master lift station.

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain master transportation facilities
necessary for development within the District boundaries.  These improvements have been designed and will be
constructed to St. Johns County standards.  Landscaping and irrigation of completed roadways will be operated
and maintained by the District, although the roadways themselves will be owned and maintained by St. Johns
County.

This total proposed improvement includes approximately 14,200 linear feet of two-lane urban section roadway,
with appropriate turn lanes (“Loop Road”).  No portion of the Loop Road is within Assessment Area 2 (Phase
3B), Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3), or Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4), nor is it included as part of the 2022 AA2-
3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project.

MISCELLANEOUS IMPROVEMENTS

Utility Improvements
The Six Mile Creek CDD financed, designed and constructed certain water utility infrastructure necessary for
development within the District boundaries.  These improvements were designed and constructed to St. Johns
County standards, and are owned and maintained by St. Johns County. This includes construction of master lift
stations, water mains, force mains, and gravity sewer mains. It is anticipated that the cost of construction for these
improvements will be partially reimbursed to the District through the utility agreement described below.

In accordance with the Six Mile Creek Water and Sewer Connection Fee Reimbursement Agreement adopted
January 29, 1999 (“Agreement”), St. Johns County will reimburse the cost of construction of the transmission
components of the water and sewer facilities located within and adjacent to the Six Mile Creek CDD.  This
reimbursement will be paid from one-third of the connection fees collected by St. Johns County at the time
connection fees are paid.  The reimbursement for a completed portion of the infrastructure must be completed
within a 12-year period following the construction of the improvement.  It is anticipated that $4,311,421 (of which
$894,438 has been received to date) of the master utility infrastructure cost will be reimbursed to the District
through this Agreement and that the District will use the funds to construct additional portions of the
improvements described in the Improvement Plan.

Common Area Landscape/Hardscape
The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain common area landscape and
hardscape improvements to benefit the development within the District boundaries.  These improvements will be
designed and constructed to St. Johns County standards, and will be owned and maintained by the District.
Landscaping will be installed continuously along the length of the Loop Road and within other areas of the
District.  These improvements also include soft costs for all common area improvements.

The Six Mile Creek CDD also intends to finance, design and construct an expansion to the existing amenity
center  to benefit the development within the District boundaries.  These improvements will be designed and
constructed to St. Johns County standards, and will be owned and maintained by the District.  These
improvements also include soft costs for the amenity center expansion improvements



t:\2022\22-264\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

2

BASIS OF COST ESTIMATE FOR
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The following is the basis for the infrastructure cost estimates:

Ø Water and Sewer Facilities have been designed in accordance with SJCUD and FDEP standards.

Ø The stormwater management system has been designed per SJRWMD and SJC standards.

Ø The engineering, permitting, construction inspection and other soft cost fees have been included in the
estimated cost.

Ø Cost estimates contained in this report are based upon year 2022 dollars.

Ø Costs have been included for street lighting and electrical conduit on all roadways in accordance with
FPL standards for the Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project.

NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project includes the cost of the neighborhood infrastructure
improvements for 182 single family units in Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C), 203 single family units in Assessment
Area 3 (Phase 3), and 195 single family units in Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4), as depicted on Plate 4.

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance certain infrastructure improvements for each neighborhood
within the District boundaries.  The improvements include complete construction of the basic infrastructure for
each neighborhood, including but not limited to: clearing and grubbing, earthwork, water and sewer underground
utility construction, drainage, stormwater management, grassing, sodding, underground electrical conduit and
neighborhood street lighting.

The cost estimate for the roadways included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements is based upon curb
and gutter section roadways with variable pavement widths, within variable width rights-of-way.  The clearing,
grubbing and earthwork estimates include all work necessary for the complete right-of-way area, and include
utility easements for underground electrical conduit for roadway street lighting.  Disturbed areas within the rights-
of-way, which are outside of the paved areas, will be sodded and/or seeded and grassed in order to provide erosion
and sediment control in accordance with St. Johns County standards.

Stormwater management cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements provide for the
attenuation and treatment of stormwater runoff from the project roadways in accordance with St. Johns River
Water Management District and St. Johns County standards.  Costs include detention pond construction, outfall
control structures, and any site fill required to provide a complete stormwater management system.

Water and sewer cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements consist of the
underground water transmission system, wastewater (sewer) collection system, and lift station serving the
development.  Costs include piping, manholes, valves, services, and all appurtenances required in order to
construct the system in accordance with St. Johns County Utility Department, and Florida Department of
Environmental Protection standards.

The neighborhood infrastructure improvements have been designed and will be constructed to St. Johns County,
St. Johns County Utility Department, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, and St. Johns River Water
Management District standards.  Roadways shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County in Assessment
Area 3 (Phase 3) & Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4), and owned and maintained privately in Assessment Area 2
(Phase 3C).  Water and sewer facilities shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County Utility Department.
The neighborhood street lighting shall be leased from FPL by the District, and the electrical cost to operate it is
presently expected to be paid by the District.  The District shall maintain stormwater management improvements.



t:\2022\22-264\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

3

TABLE 1A
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3C)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Improvement Description Estimated
Costs

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE
Traffic Signal $375,000
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $485,000
Amenity Center Expansion $625,000

NEIGHBORHOOD  INFRASTRUCTURE
Sanitary Sewer, Lift Stations and Force Mains $2,240,000
Stormwater Management $1,585,500
Neighborhood Roadways $6,135,250
Street Lighting $195,500
Water Distribution System $1,550,750
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $450,000

MASTER & NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL $13,642,000

TABLE 1B
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 3)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Improvement Description Estimated
Costs

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE
Traffic Signal $375,000
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $325,000
Amenity Center Expansion $600,000

NEIGHBORHOOD  INFRASTRUCTURE
Sanitary Sewer $2,025,850
Stormwater Management $1,660,850
Neighborhood Roadways $6,410,850
Street Lighting $205,750
Water Distribution System $1,626,350
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $250,000

MASTER & NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL $13,479,650



t:\2022\22-264\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

4

TABLE 1C
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 4)
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Improvement Description Estimated
Costs

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE
Traffic Signal $375,000
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $325,000
Amenity Center Expansion $600,000

NEIGHBORHOOD  INFRASTRUCTURE
Sanitary Sewer $2,466,150
Stormwater Management $1,560,650
Neighborhood Roadways $5,951,400
Street Lighting $185,500
Water Distribution System $1,521,400
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $250,000

MASTER & NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL $13,235,100

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS PERMIT STATUS

Regulatory permits necessary for construction of infrastructure improvements within Assessment Area 2 (Phase
3C), Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3), and Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4) have either been applied for or received.
The current status of the regulatory permits is reflected in Exhibit A.  It is our opinion that there are no technical
reasons that would prohibit the implementation of the plans presented herein and that all permits/approvals not
already issued but are necessary for the Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3, & AA3-4 Project should be obtained in
the ordinary course of development.



T:\2022\22-264\LandDev\Supplemental Engineers Report\Permit Summary.docx

EXHIBIT "A"
PERMIT STATUS

Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C)
09/02/2022

Item # Permit Agency File Number / Permit
Number Description Grantor Grantee Issue Date Expiration Date

1 ACOE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2 SJRWMD In Progress Individual Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

3 St. Johns County In Progress Construction Plan Approval St. Johns County Six Mile Creek CDD Pending

4  FDEP In Progress Water Distribution System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

5 FDEP In Progress Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3)
09/02/2022

Item # Permit Agency File Number / Permit
Number Description Grantor Grantee Issue Date Expiration Date

1 ACOE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2 SJRWMD In Progress Individual Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

3 St. Johns County In Progress Construction Plan Approval St. Johns County Six Mile Creek CDD Pending

4  FDEP In Progress Water Distribution System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

5  FDEP In Progress Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4)
09/02/2022

Item # Permit Agency File Number / Permit
Number Description Grantor Grantee Issue Date Expiration Date

1 ACOE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2 SJRWMD In Progress Individual Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

3 St. Johns County In Progress Construction Plan Approval St. Johns County Six Mile Creek CDD Pending

4  FDEP In Progress Water Distribution System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending

5  FDEP In Progress Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending



t:\2022\22-264\landdev\supplemental engineers report\4 - background.docx

5

APPENDIX
Description

Plate No.

1 Location Map

2 District Boundary Map

3 Legal Description – District Boundary

4 Master Site Plan

5 Legal Description – Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C)

6 – 6A Legal Description – Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3)

7 – 7A Legal Description – Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4)

8 Sanitary Sewer Lift Station

8A Sanitary Sewer Forcemains (Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)

9 Stormwater Management Plan

9A Stormwater Management Plan (Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)

10 Neighborhood Roadways

10A Neighborhood Roadways (Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)

11 Street Lighting

11A Street Lighting (Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)

12 Water Distribution System

12A Water Distribution System (Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)

13 Sanitary Sewer Collection System

13A Sanitary Sewer Collection System (Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Project)







Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Parcel “A”
A part of Sections 31 and 38, Township 6 South, Range 28 East, together with a part of Sections 6,
38 and 41, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, St. Johns County, Florida, being more particularly
described as follows: for a Point of Reference, commence at the intersection of the Southerly line of
said Section 41, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, with the Westerly right-of-way line of County
Road no. 13a (a 100.00 foot right-of-way as now established): thence North 71°03'40” West, along
the said South line of Section 41, a distance of 1065.59 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence
continue North 71°03'40” West, along the Southerly line of said Section 41, a distance of 3030.75
feet; thence North 60°13'49” West, continuing along said Section line, a distance of 1734.02 feet to
the common corner to Sections 41, 5 and 6; thence South 03°24'47” East, along the Easterly line of
said Section 6, a distance of 3052.10 feet; thence South 03°20'35” East, along the Easterly line of
said Section 38, a distance of 2086.25 feet; thence North 86°59'59” West, a distance of 863.15 feet
to the waters of Six Mile Creek; thence North 46°05'12' West, along the waters of said Six Mile
Creek, a distance of 1430.00 feet; thence North 45°06'48” West, along the waters of Six Mile Creek,
a distance of 1973.08 feet; thence North 15°52'42” West, along the waters of said Six Mile Creek, a
distance of 639.84 feet; thence North 07°08'17” East, a distance of 540.00 feet to a point in the
division line between Section 6 and 38; thence North 89°07'35” West, along said division line, a
distance of 540.00 feet; thence North 01°20'11” West, along the Westerly line of the North 28 acres
of the Northeast one quarter and Northwest one quarter of said Section Six, a distance of 2665.80
feet to a point in said Six Mile Creek; thence with the waters of said Six Mile Creek, the following
fourteen (14) courses: course no. 1) North 21°46'57” West, a distance of 115.71 feet; course no. 2)
North 04°03'00” West, a distance of 471.70 feet; course no. 3) North 15°30'16” West, a distance of
530.00 feet; course no. 4) North 74°15'52” West, a distance of 160.00 feet; course no. 5) North
31°54'28” West, a distance of 147.65 feet; course no. 6) North 14°54'52” West, a distance of 655.70
feet; course no. 7) North 58°35'33” West, a distance of 336.17 feet; course no. 8) North 38°53'09”
West, a distance of 291.63 feet; course no. 9) North 07°47'32” East, a distance of 480.55 feet; course
no. 10) North 31°04'47” West, a distance of 88.74 feet; course no. 11) North 20°38'46” East, a
distance of 219.13 feet; course no. 12) North 32°56'28” West, a distance of 141.49 feet; course no.
13) North 08°25'22” East, a distance of 515.92 feet; course no. 14) North 15°06'25” West, a distance
of 651.10 feet; thence North 77°45'24” East, leaving the waters of Six Mile Creek, a distance of
2251.55 feet; thence South 40°06'20” East, a distance of 3560.03 feet; thence South 85°45'56” East,
a distance of 4260.63 feet to a point in the division line between said Section 38 and Section 37;
thence South 01°06'48” East, along said Westerly line of Section 37, a distance of 258.39 feet to the
Southwest corner of said Section 37; thence South 89°40'57” East, along the South line of said
Section 37, a distance of 1179.79 feet to the Northwest corner of a 30.00 foot wide drainage
easement, as recorded in deed book 182, page 133; thence South 37°05'42” East, a distance of
930.18 feet; thence South 12°23'05” West, along a line parallel with and lying 50.00 foot Westerly
of when measured at right angles to the Westerly right-of-way line of state road no. 13a (a 100.00
foot right-of-way as now established), a distance of 1482.90 feet to the point of curve, concave
Easterly, having a radius of 2392.01 feet; thence Southwesterly, continuing along said parallel line
and along the arc of said curve, an arc distance of 604.31 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord
bearing of South 05°08'51” West and a chord distance of 602.70 feet to the point of tangency of said
curve; thence South 02°05'24” East, continuing along said parallel line, a distance of 868.99 feet;
thence South 87°54'35” West, leaving said parallel line, a distance of 944.62 feet; thence South
02°05'25” East, a distance of 759.38 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Together with the following described lands:
Parcel “B”

A portion of Section 5, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, St. Johns County, Florida, being more
particularly described as follows:
For a Point of Beginning, commence at the Northeasterly corner of Section 6, Township 7 South,
Range 28 East, also being the Northwesterly corner of said Section 5, said corner lying on the
Southwesterly line of Section 41 of the Antonio Huertas Grant, Township 7 South, Range 28 East;
thence South 60°13'49” East, along said Southwesterly line of Section 41, a distance of 1417.28 feet
to the Northwesterly corner of those lands described and recorded in Official Records Book 5121,
page 710, of the Public Records of said county; thence South 01°22'46” East, departing said
Southwesterly line and along the Westerly line of last said lands, 2320.32 feet to the Southwesterly
corner thereof, also being the Southeasterly corner of those lands described and recorded in Official
Records Book 3781, page 1556 of said Public Records; thence South 88°46'30” West, along the
Southerly line of last said lands, 1104.63 feet to a point lying on the Easterly line of Section 38 of
the Jose Papy Grant, Township 7 South, Range 28 East; thence North 03°20'35” West, along said
Easterly line, 0.28 feet; thence North 03°24'47” West, continuing along said Easterly line and along
the Easterly line of said Section 6, a distance of 3052.10 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Subject to an easement for ingress and egress over and across the South 60 feet of the above
described property, (as to Parcel “B”), per Official Records Book 3781, page 1556, of the Public
Records of said county.

Containing 1359.93 acres, more or less.



LEGEND:

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2

(PHASE 2)
(2017 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 1
(2015 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2

(PHASE 2)
(2017 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2

(PHASE 1)
(2016)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2

(PHASE 2)
(2017 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 3

(PHASE 1A)
(2021)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 3

(PHASE 1B)
(2021)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2
(PHASE 1)
(2016)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2
(PHASE 3C)
(CURRENT )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 1
(2015 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 1
(2015 )

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2
(PHASE 3A)
(2020)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2
(PHASE 1)
(2016)

ASSESSMENT AREA 3
(PHASE 3)
(CURRENT)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 1
(2015)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 3
(PHASE 2)
(2021)

ASSESSMENT AREA 1 (152.20 Ac.) [2015]

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 1) (112.68 Ac.) [2016]

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 2) (158.31 Ac.) [2017]

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3) (272.30 Ac.) [2020/ FUTURE]

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1) (173.62 Ac.) [2021]

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 2) (81.11 Ac.) [2021]

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 3) (107.04 Ac.)

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 4) (70.45 Ac.)

ASSESSMENT
AREA 2
(PHASE 3B)
(2021)

ASSESSMENT AREA 3
(PHASE 4)
(CURRENT)

LOTS
43' 53' 63' 70' 80' TOTAL

27 25 81 19 -1 [2015] 152

160 - 63 21 612 (PHASE 1) [2016] 305

69 216 34 8 742 (PHASE 2) [2017] 401

57 62 62 - - 1812 (PHASE 3A)
[AGE RESTRICTED - 2020]

89 79 39 - - 2072 (PHASE 3B)
[AGE RESTRICTED - 2021]

71 78 33 - - 1822 (PHASE 3C)
[AGE RESTRICTED - 2021]

76 74 45 - -3 (PHASE 1A) [2021] 195

107 61 - - -3 (PHASE 1B) [2021] 168

ASSESSMENT AREA

- - 71 - -3 (PHASE 2) [2021] 71

119 64 20 - -3 (PHASE 3) [2022] 203

93 87 15 - -3 (PHASE 4) 195



A PORTION OF THE ANTONIO HUERTAS GRANT, SECTION 41, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 28
EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;

BEGIN, AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF THE PLAT OF TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL-PHASE
1, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 104, PAGES 1 THROUGH 16, INCLUSIVE OF THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE EASTERLY, AND NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE
SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PLAT OF TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL-PHASE 1, RUN THE FOLLOWING
FOUR (4) COURSES; COURSE NO. 1: SOUTH 81°39'24" EAST, 1122.36 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; COURSE NO. 2: EASTERLY, ALONG AND
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 312.50
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 187.33 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 81°10'11" EAST, 184.54 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF
SAID CURVE; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 63°59'47" EAST, 25.02 FEET; COURSE NO. 4: 88°53'49"
EAST, 456.01 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 16°53'10" WEST, 285.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 48°01'13"
WEST, 578.97 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 11°23'04" WEST, 377.90 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 82°57'21"
EAST, 37.41 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07°02'39" WEST, 141.72 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°01'58"
WEST, 50.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG
AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 295.32
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 46.76 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 82°30'29" WEST, 46.71 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02°57'04" WEST,
142.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 17°22'21" WEST, 278.60 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°57'52" WEST,
164.97 FEET; THENCE NORTH 77°01'54" WEST, 17.28 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING
WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 225.44 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 37.52 FEET, SAID ARC
BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 81°48'51" WEST, 37.48
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 03°50'10" WEST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02°54'46" WEST, 182.03
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°56'20" WEST, 316.39 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF AFORESAID
SECTION 41; THENCE NORTH 71°03'40" WEST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 1130.88 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 12°26'04" WEST, 1650.12 FEET, TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PLAT OF
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 1 UNIT C, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 73, PAGES 28 THROUGH 38,
INCLUSIVE, OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 1 UNIT C, AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE
OF THE PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK PHASE 3 UNIT A, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 86, PAGES 41
THROUGH 44, INCLUSIVE, OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS, RUN THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES
AND DISTANCES; COURSE NO. 1: NORTH 70°46'38" EAST, 134.06 FEET; COURSE NO. 2: NORTH
51°12'15" EAST, 197.05 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 55°58'18" EAST, 60.21 FEET; COURSE
NO. 4: NORTH 51°12'29" EAST, 164.59 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE
LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO. 5: NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 455.00 FEET, AN ARC
DISTANCE OF 184.85 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF NORTH 39°34'10" EAST, 183.58 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 79.93 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.



TRACT C-1, AS SHOWN ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PLAT OF
WHISPER CREEK PHASE 4 UNIT B, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 83, PAGES 49
THROUGH 58, INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY,
FLORIDA, TOGETHER WITH A PORTION OF SECTION 6, AND A PORTION OF THE
ANTONIO HUERTAS GRANT, SECTION 41, ALL LYING IN TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH,
RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;

BEGIN, AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF THE PLAT OF WHIPSER CREEK
PHASE 1-UNIT C, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 73, PAGES 28 THROUGH 38,
INCLUSIVE, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE
EASTERLY, AND NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID PLAT
OF WHIPSER CREEK PHASE 1-UNIT C, RUN THE FOLLOWING TWENTY NINE (29)
COURSES; COURSE NO. 1: NORTH 82°04'24" EAST, 65.46 FEET; COURSE NO. 2:
NORTH 86°11'21" EAST, 37.26 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: SOUTH 47°26'57" EAST,
39.22 FEET; COURSE NO. 4: SOUTH 81°09'38" EAST, 420.00 FEET; COURSE NO.
5: SOUTH 73°12'31" EAST, 58.20 FEET; COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 25°48'20" EAST,
140.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO.
7: SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 325.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF
52.50 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 59°34'01" EAST, 52.44 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; COURSE NO. 8:
SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 10.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 14.22
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF
SOUTH 14°11'31" EAST, 13.05 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE
OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; COURSE NO. 9: SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF
344.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 142.57 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED
BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 14°40'55" WEST, 141.56
FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; COURSE NO. 10: SOUTH
02°48'31" WEST, 75.91 FEET; COURSE NO. 11: SOUTH 87°11'29" EAST, 80.00
FEET; COURSE NO. 12: SOUTH 88°24'02" EAST, 50.01 FEET; COURSE NO. 13:
NORTH 02°48'31" EAST, 40.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 14: NORTH 87°11'29" WEST,

50.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 15: NORTH 02°48'31" EAST, 34.85 FEET, TO THE
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; COURSE NO. 16:
NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 264.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 100.76
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF
NORTH 13°44'33" EAST, 100.15 FEET; COURSE NO. 17: SOUTH 65°12'14" EAST,
109.02 FEET; COURSE NO. 18: NORTH 32°55'01" EAST, 14.22 FEET; COURSE
NO. 19: NORTH 40°22'34" EAST, 37.38 FEET; COURSE NO. 20: NORTH
77°11'28" EAST, 111.93 FEET; COURSE NO. 21: NORTH 80°03'08" EAST, 244.02
FEET; COURSE NO. 22: NORTH 22°16'35" EAST, 47.71 FEET; COURSE NO. 23:
NORTH 15°48'46" EAST, 21.94 FEET; COURSE NO. 24: NORTH 38°10'59" EAST,
53.72 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY;
COURSE NO. 25: EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE,
CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 29.61 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF NORTH 72°06'36" EAST, 27.91 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; COURSE NO. 26: SOUTH 73°57'47" EAST, 66.37
FEET; COURSE NO. 27: SOUTH 69°00'03" EAST, 69.03 FEET; COURSE NO. 28:
SOUTH 63°20'44" EAST, 58.78 FEET; COURSE NO. 29: NORTH 70°46'16" EAST,
9.16 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°26'04" EAST, 1650.12 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY
LINE OF AFORESAID SECTION 41; THENCE NORTH 71°03'40" WEST, ALONG
LAST SAID LINE, 1226.05 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60°13'49" WEST, CONTINUING
ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 1734.02 FEET, TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID
SECTION 6; THENCE SOUTH 03°24'47" EAST, ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF
SAID SECTION 6, A DISTANCE OF 1010.28 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°59'23"
WEST, 167.76 FEET; THENCE NORTH 48°29'01" WEST, 226.39 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 19°45'18" WEST, 858.18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22°09'18" WEST, 25.31
FEET, TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF AFORESAID PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK
PHASE 4 UNIT B; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY LINE,
RUN THE FOLLOWING FOURTY-THREE (43) COURSES AND DISTANCES; COURSE
NO. 1: NORTH 58°53'06" EAST, 40.47 FEET; COURSE NO. 2: NORTH 33°15'11"
EAST, 31.01 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 35°07'18" EAST, 41.79 FEET; COURSE
NO. 4: NORTH 10°17'38" EAST, 42.38 FEET; COURSE NO. 5: NORTH 40°54'56"
EAST, 45.35 FEET; COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 09°20'47" EAST, 26.66 FEET; COURSE
NO. 7: NORTH 32°53'56" EAST, 31.20 FEET; COURSE NO. 8: NORTH 05°41'56"
EAST, 31.51 FEET; COURSE NO. 9: NORTH 13°25'02" EAST, 38.56 FEET; COURSE



NO. 10: NORTH 59°34'12" EAST, 36.77 FEET; COURSE NO. 11: NORTH
02°27'50" EAST, 32.51 FEET; COURSE NO. 12: NORTH 58°52'14" EAST, 11.57
FEET; COURSE NO. 13: NORTH 75°30'55" EAST, 27.43 FEET; COURSE NO. 14:
NORTH 46°22'47" EAST, 33.19 FEET; COURSE NO. 15: NORTH 76°04'37" EAST,
51.07 FEET; COURSE NO. 16: SOUTH 89°39'07" EAST, 33.53 FEET; COURSE NO.
17: NORTH 40°15'02" EAST, 32.18 FEET; COURSE NO. 18: NORTH 70°27'41"
EAST, 88.42 FEET; COURSE NO. 19: SOUTH 45°26'31" EAST, 90.94 FEET;
COURSE NO. 20: SOUTH 24°59'11" EAST, 22.65 FEET; COURSE NO. 21: SOUTH
42°22'18" EAST, 20.63 FEET; COURSE NO. 22: SOUTH 49°05'19" EAST, 52.55
FEET; COURSE NO. 23: NORTH 07°39'56" EAST, 14.09 FEET; COURSE NO. 24:
NORTH 50°45'42" EAST, 67.90 FEET; COURSE NO. 25: SOUTH 54°19'50" EAST,
69.17 FEET; COURSE NO. 26: NORTH 83°40'27" EAST, 47.45 FEET; COURSE NO.
27: NORTH 87°43'39" EAST, 43.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 28: SOUTH 43°03'55"
EAST, 42.44 FEET; COURSE NO. 29: SOUTH 72°22'56" EAST, 34.01 FEET;
COURSE NO. 30: SOUTH 67°25'36" EAST, 39.12 FEET; COURSE NO. 31: NORTH
86°54'24" EAST, 42.66 FEET; COURSE NO. 32: SOUTH 88°57'08" EAST, 46.54
FEET; COURSE NO. 33: NORTH 83°32'30" EAST, 49.75 FEET; COURSE NO. 34:
NORTH 83°32'32" EAST, 58.52 FEET; COURSE NO. 35: NORTH 88°03'32" EAST,
52.62 FEET; COURSE NO. 36: SOUTH 87°46'45" EAST, 38.28 FEET; COURSE NO.
37: SOUTH 89°40'59" EAST, 43.95 FEET; COURSE NO. 38: SOUTH 69°35'39"
EAST, 62.05 FEET; COURSE NO. 39: SOUTH 81°14'59" EAST, 35.04 FEET;
COURSE NO. 40: NORTH 73°30'02" EAST, 36.88 FEET; COURSE NO. 41: NORTH
70°16'00" EAST, 34.22 FEET; COURSE NO. 42: NORTH 65°39'35" EAST, 12.11
FEET; COURSE NO. 43: NORTH 03°19'04" WEST, 43.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 66.92 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.



ASSESSMENT AREA PHASE 4

A PORTION OF SECTION 5 AND 6, AND A PORTION OF THE JOSE PAPY GRANT,
SECTION 38, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY,
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS;

COMMENCE AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID SECTION
5 WITH THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PACETTI ROAD (COUNTY ROAD
NO. 13A, A 100 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY AS NOW ESTABLISHED); THENCE NORTH
71°03'40" WEST, ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF SECTION 5, A DISTANCE OF
4096.34 FEET, TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID LINE; THENCE NORTH 60°13'49"
WEST, CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE, 316.82 FEET, TO THE
EASTERLY LINE OF THOSE LANDS DESCRIBED AND RECORDED IN OFFICIAL
RECORDS BOOK 3781, PAGE 1556 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY
AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 75°23'51" WEST, 1209.08
FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°59'23" WEST, 167.76 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
48°29'01" EAST, 98.87 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 32°12'52" WEST, 507.91 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 08°25'34" WEST, 130.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07°59'38"
WEST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 08°21'35" WEST, 130.00 FEET, TO THE ARC
OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG
AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING
A RADIUS OF 127.34 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 72.97 FEET, SAID ARC BEING
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 35°51'53"
WEST, 71.98 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE
SOUTH 52°16'54" WEST, 432.66 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 300.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 60.11 FEET, SAID ARC BEING
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 58°01'19"
WEST, 60.01 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE
SOUTH 63°45'43" WEST, 136.45 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A
CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A
RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 15.90 FEET, SAID ARC BEING
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 61°23'23"
WEST, 15.89 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 45°28'50" EAST, 79.14 FEET, TO THE POINT
OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE

SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1170.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF
232.91 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 39°46'39" EAST, 232.53 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 34°04'29" EAST, 79.49 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 55°55'31" EAST, 73.31 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE
LEADING NORTHERLY; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 30.00 FEET, AN
ARC DISTANCE OF 26.91 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 15°54'44" EAST, 26.02 FEET, TO THE
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY;
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE,
CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET, AN ARC
DISTANCE OF 61.95 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING
AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 32°22'04" EAST, 61.68 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF
50.89 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF NORTH 37°42'12" EAST, 50.34 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 52°16'54" EAST, 335.33 FEET, TO
THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE
EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 117.44
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF
NORTH 85°55'31" EAST, 110.80 FEET, TO THE POINT OF COMPOUND
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 285.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF
87.63 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 51°37'21" EAST, 87.29 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1215.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF
147.49 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 46°17'29" EAST, 147.40 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF



53.61 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 24°10'17" EAST, 51.85 FEET; THENCE NORTH 71°50'36"
EAST, 138.02 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°09'24" EAST, 203.99 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 71°50'36" WEST, 6.67 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°09'24" EAST, 135.05
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 73°49'11" WEST, 13.85 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 76°14'40"
WEST, 53.95 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING
SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC
OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET,
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 4.91 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 66°51'39" WEST, 4.89 FEET, TO THE POINT
OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 57°28'38" WEST, 38.60 FEET,
TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID SECTION 38; THENCE SOUTH 03°24'48" EAST,
ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 361.22 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THOSE
LANDS DESCRIBED AND RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3781, PAGE
1556 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY; THENCE NORTH 88°48'01"
EAST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 1104.33 FEET, TO THE AFORESAID EASTERLY
LINE OF LAST SAID LANDS; THENCE NORTH 01°22'25" WEST, ALONG LAST SAID
LINE, 2320.58 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 71.14 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.



























                        DRAFT                            
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 
 
 

 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report 

for the Series 2022 Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 3, Assessment Area 2 

Phase 3C  
 

                                    October 19, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by 
 

Governmental Management Services, LLC 
 
 

 
 
 
 



   2 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Executive Summary ......................................................................  3 
1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits ........................................ 5          
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology .................. 6
           

 
2.0 The Series 2022 Capital Improvement Bonds AA3 Phase 3, AA2 

Phase 3C 
2.1 Development Plan Overview ....................................................... 6  
2.2      Bond Description              …………………………………………… 7 
 
 

3.0 Assessment Allocation 
3.1 Structure ......................................................................................... 7  
3.2 Assessment Allocation .................................................................. 8          
 
 

4.0 True Up Mechanism     ............................................................................. 9         
  

5.0 Final Assessment Rolls     ......................................................................... 9  
 

6.0 Additional Stipulations………………………………………………………10        
 
7.0 Appendix 
            

 Table 1   Development Program        
            Table 2  Infrastructure Cost Estimates AA3-3, AA2-3C 
            Table 3   Series 2022 Sources and Uses   
            Table 4   Benefit Calculations  
            Table 5   Series 2022 Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations   

 Table 6 Assessment Roll 
  

Attachments:  AA3 Phase 3, AA2 Phase 3C - Legal description  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   3 

 1.0 Introduction 
        

1.1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1.1 The District 

 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the “District”), 
a local unit of special-purpose government, was established 
by rule number 42GGG-1 adopted by the Florida Land and 
Water Adjudicatory Commission on March 7, 2007, as 
amended on August 11, 2021 and May 23, 2022. The District 
encompasses approximately 1,360 acres of land located 
within the unincorporated area of St. Johns County, Florida, 
and was established for the purpose of, among other things, 
financing and managing the acquisition, construction, 
maintenance and operation of major infrastructure necessary 
for development to occur within the District. 
 
The TrailMark development located within the District is a 
master planned, amenitized, residential community. The 
planned development will include approximately 2,278 
residential units composed of single-family, patio and 
townhomes along with multi-family housing. 
 
1.1.2 Assessment Areas 
 
The District has created three (3) separate Assessment Areas to 
carry out its financing program. Additional Areas may be 
created over time.   
 
The District previously adopted its Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2022 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 3 (Unit 
12) and Phase 4 (Unit 13, Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C (EP3) 
dated September 9, 2022 (the “Master Series 2022 Report”).  
The Master Series 2022 Report allocated the maximum level of 
assessments to Assessment Area 2, Phase 3C (“AA2–3C”), 
Assessment Area 3, Phase 3 (“AA3-3”), and Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 4 (“AA3-4”).  This report supplements the Master Series 
2022 Report for the purpose of allocating the assessments for 
AA3-3 and AA23-3C that will secure the $9,330,000 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the “Series 2022 
Bonds”).   



   4 

It is anticipated that the District will issue a separate series of 
bonds in the future, which bonds will be secured by 
assessments allocated to AA3-4.  The District will approve 
another supplement to the Master Series 2022 Report at the 
time the future series of bonds are issued.       
 
Assessment Area 1, consists of approximately 153 acres and 
has been developed into 152 residential lots, all of which have 
been platted.  
 
Assessment Area 2 consists of approximately 543 acres and is 
planned for 1,281 residential lots.  Assessment Area 2 is being 
developed in 3 Phases:  305 lots have platted in Phase 1, 398 
lots in have platted in Phase 2 and 396 lots have platted in 
Phase 3 with 182 additional lots in Phase 3 planned for the 
Series 2022 Bonds  
 
 
Assessment Area 3 (also referred to as the 2007 Assessment 
Area) consists of approximately 550 acres.  363 lots have 
platted in Phase 1; 75 lots have platted in Phase 2.  203 lots are 
planned for Phase 3, which will secure the Series 2022 Bonds.   
 
1.1.3 The 2007, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2020, 2021 and 2022 Bonds 
 

                        The District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) adopted the 
Improvement Plan for the Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds 
dated December 1, 2006 (the “CIP”), as supplemented by the 
District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital 
Improvements dated May 25, 2007, the Supplemental 
Engineers Report for 2014 Capital Improvements dated 
November 12, 2014, the Supplemental Engineers Report for the 
Series 2016 Capital Improvements (“2016 Engineers Report”)  
dated April 12, 2016,  the Supplemental Engineers Report for 
the Series 2017 Capital Improvements dated June 5, 2017, the 
Supplemental Engineer’s Report for the Series 2020 Capital 
Improvements dated June 2, 2020, the Supplemental 
Engineer’s Report for the Series 2021 Capital Improvements 
dated January 19, 2021, the Supplemental Engineers Report for 
the Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Capital Improvements dated 
September 10, 2021, and the Supplemental Engineers Report 
for the Series 2022 AA2-3C & AA3-3 dated October 5, 2022 
(collectively, the Engineer’s Report”), which describe the 
public infrastructure improvements financed in part by the 



   5 

District’s issuance of Bonds secured by special assessments 
levied on the lands within the District (the “CIP”). 

 
The District has previously issued its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “2007 Bonds”), its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 Refunding Bonds 
(the 2015 Bonds), its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2016A (the “2016A Bonds”), its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds Series 2017A (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the 
“2017A Bonds”), its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2017B (Assessment area 2, Phase 2)(the “2017B Bonds”), 
its Capital Improvement and Refunding Bonds Series 2020 
(Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) (the “2020 Bonds”), its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 1) (the “2021 AA3-1 Bonds”), and its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3 
(phase 2) and Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) (the “2021 AA3-2, 
AA2-3B Bonds”)to finance portions of the CIP.  
 
This Report addresses the assessments securing the Series 2022 
Bonds, secured by AA2–3C and AA3-3.   The Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Supplemental Engineers 
Report for Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Capital 
Improvements dated October 5, 2022, 2022 (“2022 Project 
Engineer’s Report”) describes the project, which will be 
partially funded by the Series 2022 Bonds. It is anticipated that 
the proceeds of the Series 2022 Bonds will be deposited into 
two separate construction funds, one fund for each 
assessment area securing the Series 2022 Bonds.  The 
assessment areas securing the Series 2022 Bonds are 
Assessment Area 3, Phase 3, which includes 203 lots (the “AA3-
3 Assessments”), and Assessment Area 2, Phase 3C, which 
includes 182 lots (the “AA2-3C Assessments”).  

 
                      A detailed estimated Sources and Uses of funds for the Series 

2022 Bonds, broken out for each assessment area is contained 
in is contained in Table 3.  

 
 

1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits 
 

Improvements undertaken by the District as described in the 
CIP create special and peculiar benefits, different in kind and 



   6 

degree than general benefits, for properties within its borders 
as well as general benefits to the public at large.  

 
As contained in the Master Assessment Report the benefit from 
the CIP was based upon $131,449,000 of construction costs for 
the system of improvements. The 2014 Engineer’s Report 
estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP, in part 
because it describes additional improvements. Because the 
CIP is a system of improvements, the additional improvements 
increase the overall benefit to all developable lands within the 
District. Notwithstanding the additional improvements 
described in various Supplemental Engineer’s Reports, the 
benefit findings and methodology contained in the Master 
Methodology Report still apply and are incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
Benefit per assessment area and product type is outlined in 
Table 4. 
 

 
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 

 
Special assessments under Florida law, to be valid, must meet 
two requirements. The first requirement is that the properties 
assessed must receive a special benefit from the 
improvements paid for by the assessments. The second 
requirement is that the assessments must be fairly and 
reasonably allocated to the properties being assessed. 
 
Florida law provides for a wide application of special 
assessments that meet these two characteristics of special 
assessments.  
 

 
2.0 The Series 2022 Bonds 
                      

2.1 Development Plan - Overview 
 

The Developer of the property within the District has defined 
the land uses for the property. The land uses are described in 
in Table 1 (Appendix) (“Development Plan”) associated with 
the AA3 -3 Assessments, AA2-3C Assessments. The 
Development Plan may change dependent upon future 
market conditions.  



   7 

2.2 Bond Description 
 

The Series 2022 Bonds are planned to be issued with a thirty-
year term and an anticipated average coupon rate of 6.5%. 
Interest is capitalized for 12 months and the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund (“DSRF”) is equal to the annual Maximum Annual 
Debt Service (“MADS”) of $714,483. 
 
The Series 2022 Bonds are planned to be issued at a par 
amount of $9,330,000. See estimated bond terms on Table 3. 
  

 
3.0 Assessment Allocation 
 

3.1      Structure 
 

The debt required to finance the CIP is allocated to the 
benefited lands within the District consistent with the Master 
Assessment Report. As noted above, the 2014 Engineer’s 
Report estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP 
increasing the overall benefit to all developable lands within 
the District. The Series 2022 Bonds fund a portion of the 
improvements described in the Series 2022 project Engineer’s 
Report (the “Series 2022 Project”), which describes 
improvements for each of the assessment areas securing the 
Series 2022 Bonds.  Specifically, the Series 2022 Project consists 
of the improvements AA3-3 which are estimated at 
$13,479,650 and AA2-3C which are estimated at $13,642,000. 
The Series 2022 Bonds will provide for construction funds in the 
approximate amount of $3,285,185 and $3,471,958 
respectively.  The remaining portion of the proceeds from the 
Series 2022 Bonds will be used to redeem a portion, 
approximately $905,000, of the Series 2016B Bonds which are 
currently outstanding.  
 
A component of the improvements for Assessment Area 2, 
Phase 3, which includes Assessment Area 2, Phase 3C, is a new 
amenity center (the “Phase 3 Amenity”).  It is planned that the 
Phase 3 Amenity will be utilized and funded by on the 
landowners in Assessment Area 2, Phase 3, but future 
development in Assessment Area 2, Phase 3 may change the 
utilization and funding depending upon the type of 
development.  Individuals who live within the District but 
outside of Assessment Area 2, Phase 3 will be required to pay 



   8 

an annual user fee in order to use the Phase 3 Amenity.  At this 
time, the Phase 3 Amenity is planned to be funded solely by 
debt and O&M Assessments levied on the development units 
in Assessment Area 2, Phases 3A, 3B, and 3C.   
 

3.2 Assessment Allocation 
 

Based upon the CIP, the District’s assessment consultant and 
underwriter determined the amount of Bonds required to fund 
the infrastructure costs. 
 
The CIP consists of roadway improvements, potable water, 
wastewater, landscaping, monumentation, signage and 
community recreation improvements that benefit all lands 
within the District. The CIP consists of a system of improvements 
that benefits all developable property equally. The 2007 Bonds 
were issued to finance a portion of the acquisition and 
construction of the 2007 Improvement Plan, which comprises a 
portion of the CIP.  The Series 2022 Bonds are being issued to 
fund a portion of the CIP.  
 
As noted above, the Assessment Area 2, Phase 3 
improvements include the Phase 3 Amenity, which as currently 
planned benefits only the property within Assessment Area 2, 
Phases 3A, 3B, and 3C.  With the exception of the phase 3 
Amenity, the CIP consists of a system of improvements that 
benefits all developable property equally.  Given the 
construction cost oof the Assessment Area 2, Phase 3 
Improvements, even though the Phase 3 Amenity Is not part of 
the system of improvements, the assessments within 
Assessment Area 2, Phase 3, including the assessments within 
AA2-3C, meet the requirements set forth in Sections 1.2 and 1.3 
of this Report. 
 
The AA3-3 Assessments will be levied on 107.18 gross acres in 
Assessment Area 3, Phase 3 and the AA2-3C Assessments will 
be levied on the 51.28 gross acres in Assessment Area 2, Phase 
3C.   

 
As land is developed and platted, the AA3-3 and AA2-3C 
Assessments will be allocated on a first platted basis to 
developed and platted lots with an identifiable folio number. 
The Series 2022 Bonds are expected to be allocated to and 
fully absorbed by the 203 planned lots for Assessment Area 3, 



   9 

Phase 3 and the 182 planned lots for Assessment Area 2, Phase 
3C.  
 

 
4.0 True – Up Mechanism  

 
In order to assure that the District’s debt will not build up on 
unsold acres, and to assure that the requirements that the non-
ad valorem assessments will be constitutionally lienable on the 
property will continue to be met, the District shall determine the 
following. 
 
To assure that there will always be sufficient development 
potential in the undeveloped property to assure payment of 
debt service after a plat or site plan approval, the following 
test will be applied. The test is that the par debt per acre 
remaining on the undeveloped property within Assessment 
Area 3 Phase 3 and Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C is never 
allowed to increase above its maximum per acre level.  
 
The AA3-3 and AA2-3C Assessments securing a portion of the 
Series 2022 Bonds are anticipated to be in the principal 
amount of $9,330,000. AA3-3 and AA2-3C, planned for 385 
units total as contained on Table 1, are 158.46 acres. The 
maximum debt per acre is $58,879.21. Therefore, at the time of 
platting, if only a portion of the parcel is platted, then the 
remaining undeveloped property within the parcel cannot 
exceed a per acre debt of $58,879.21. If the remaining 
undeveloped property has debt in excess of $58,879.21 per 
acre, a true-up payment will be due upon platting or site plan 
approval. If the entire parcel is platted and the assignment of 
debt to the platted lots is not sufficient to absorb the total debt 
a true-up payment will be due upon platting or site plan 
approval.  
 

 
 

5.0 Final Assessment Rolls 
 
Final assessment rolls reflecting the allocation of special 
assessments securing repayment of the Series 2022 Bonds are 
attached hereto as the lands to be developed into 203 and 
182 lots respectively. Table 5 provides for the Par Debt and 
Debt Service Assessments AA3-3 and AA2-3C. 



   10 

 
6.0     Additional Stipulations 

Certain financing, development, and engineering data was 
provided by members of District staff and/or the Developer. 
The allocation methodology described herein was based on 
information provided by those professionals. Governmental 
Management Services, LLC makes no representations 
regarding said information transactions beyond restatement of 
the factual information necessary for compilation of this 
Report. For further information about the Bonds, please refer to 
the Master Trust Indenture and or the Supplemental Trust 
Indentures. 

 



TABLE 1
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Development Program Series 2022
AA3-3, AA2-3C

LAND USE ERU
AA3-3 
UNITS

AA3-3 
TOTAL ERUS

43' LOT 0.8 119 95.2
53' LOT 1 64 64
63' LOT 1.2 20 24

TOTAL 203 183.2

LAND USE ERU
AA2-3C 
UNITS

AA2-3C 
TOTAL ERUS

43' LOT 0.8 71 56.8
53' LOT 1 78 78
63' LOT 1.2 33 39.6

TOTAL 182 174.4

GRAND TOTAL 385 357.60

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 2
Six Mile Creek CDD

Infrastructure Cost Estimates AA2-3C, AA3-3

Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
AA2-3C

Total Cost 
Estimates

Master Infrastructure
Traffic Signal 375,000
Common Area Landscaape/Hardscape 485,000
Amenity Center Expansion 625,000
Neighborhood Infrastructure
Sewer Systems 2,240,000
Stormwater Management 1,585,500
Neighborhood Roadways 6,135,250
Street Lighting 195,500
Water Distribution System 1,550,750
Common Area Landscaape/Hardscape 450,000

Total Costs (approx.) 13,642,000

Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
AA3-3

Total Cost 
Estimates

Master Infrastructure
Traffic Signal 375,000
Common Area Landscaape/Hardscape 325,000
Amenity Center Expansion 600,000
Neighborhood Infrastructure
Sewer Systems 2,025,850
Stormwater Management 1,660,850
Neighborhood Roadways 6,410,850
Street Lighting 205,750
Water Distribution System 1,626,350
Common Area Landscaape/Hardscape 250,000

Total Costs (approx.) 13,479,650

Information provided by England, Thims & Miller, , Inc.
Supplemental Engineer's Report Dated October 5, 2022

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL  MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 3
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Sources and Uses Series 2022
AA3-3,  AA2-3C

Sources: SERIES 2022

Bond Proceeds - Par Amount 9,330,000

Total Sources of Funds 9,330,000

Uses:

Construction Funds AA3-3 3,285,185
Construction Funds AA2-3C 3,471,958
Debt Service Reserve Fund MADS 714,483
Interest Reserve 606,450
Cost of Issuance 386,600
Underwriter's Discount
Redemption of Series 2016B Bonds 865,323

Total Uses of Funds 9,330,000

Principal Amortization Installments 30
Average Coupon 6.50%
Par Amount 9,330,000
Maximum Annual Debt Service 714,483
Capitalized Interest Through 11/01/23
Maturity 5/1/2053

Notes:
DSRF based on 100% of maximum annual debt service (MADS).
Provided by FMSbonds, Inc.

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 4
Six Mile Creek CDD

Benefit

AA3-3

Development Type
Number of 

Planned 
Units

ERU Per 
Unit (1)

Total 
ERU's

Improvement 
Costs Per 

Product Type

Benefit 
Per Unit

Allocation of 
Series 2022 

Par Debt 

Series 
2022 Par 
Debt  per 

Unit 
43' LOT 119 0.80 95.2 7,004,709 58,863 2,031,011 17,067
53' LOT 64 1.00 64 4,709,048 73,579 1,441,647 22,526
63' LOT 20 1.20 24 1,765,893 88,295 548,453 27,423
TOTAL 203 183.2 13,479,650 4,021,110

AA2-3C

Development Type
Number of 

Planned 
Units

ERU Per 
Unit (1)

Total 
ERU's

Improvement 
Costs Per 

Product Type

Benefit 
Per Unit

Allocation of 
Series 2022 

Par Debt 

Series 
2022 Par 
Debt  per 

Unit 
43' LOT 71 0.80 56.8 4,443,037 62,578 1,917,338 27,005
53' LOT 78 1.00 78 6,101,353 78,222 2,297,859 29,460
63' LOT 33 1.20 39.6 3,097,610 93,867 1,093,693 33,142
TOTAL 182 174.4 13,642,000 5,308,890

(1) Based on the Supplemental Master Assessment Methodology Report dated September 21, 2022

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 5
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations Series 2022
AA3-3, AA2-3C

AA3-3 LAND USE
AA3-3 # 
UNITS

PAR DEBT 
PER UNIT 

SERIES 2022 
AA3-3

TOTAL SERIES 
2022 AA3-3 
PAR DEBT

SERIES 2022 
AA3-3 NET 

ANNUAL PER 
UNIT

TOTAL SERIES 
2022 AA3-3 

MAX ANNUAL

SERIES 2022 AA3-
3 ANNUAL PER 

UNIT GROSS 
TAX BILL

43' LOT 119 17,067           2,031,011          1,307                155,533          1,390                   
53' LOT 64 22,526           1,441,647          1,725                110,400          1,835                   
63' LOT 20 27,423           548,453             2,100                42,000             2,234                   

TOTAL 203 4,021,110         307,933          

AA2-3C LAND USE
AA2-3C # 

UNITS

PAR DEBT 
PER UNIT 

SERIES 2022 
AA2-3C

TOTAL SERIES 
2022 AA2-3C 

PAR DEBT

SERIES 2022 
AA2-3C NET 

ANNUAL PER 
UNIT

TOTAL SERIES 
2022 AA2-3C 

MAX ANNUAL

SERIES 2022 AA2-
3C ANNUAL PER 

UNIT GROSS 
TAX BILL

43' LOT 71 27,005           1,917,338          2,068                146,828          2,200.00             
53' LOT 78 29,460           2,297,859          2,256                175,968          2,400.00             
63' LOT 33 33,142           1,093,693          2,538                83,754             2,700.00             

TOTAL 182 5,308,890         406,550          

GRAND TOTAL 385 9,330,000 714,483

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 6
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Assessment Roll Series 2022
AA3-3, AA2-3C

PARCEL ID OWNER
ASESSMENT 

AREAS ACRES PAR DEBT
MAX 

ANNUAL

029010-0000 SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC AA3-3,  AA2-3C 158.46 9,330,000 714,483

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TRAILMARK ASSESSMENT AREA 2, PHASE 3C 
 
A PORTION OF THE ANTONIO HUERTAS GRANT, SECTION 41, TOWNSHIP 7 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE PLAT OF TRAILMARK EAST 
PARCEL-PHASE 1, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 104, PAGES 1 THROUGH 16, 
INCLUSIVE OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY; THENCE 
WESTERLY, SOUTHERLY AND NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE 
OF SAID TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL-PHASE 1, RUN THE FOLLOWING SEVEN 
(7) COURSES AND DISTANCES: COURSE NO. 1: NORTH 77°03'36" WEST, 
142.04 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; COURSE NO. 
2: SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 225.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
10.86 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF SOUTH 07°15'26" WEST, 10.86 FEET; COURSE NO. 3: 
NORTH 81°21'34" WEST, 50.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 4: NORTH 77°03'36" 
WEST, 147.82 FEET; COURSE NO. 5: NORTH 33°18'32" WEST, 44.49 
FEET; COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 77°36'55" WEST, 72.57 FEET; COURSE NO. 
7: SOUTH 88°53'49" WEST, 260.33 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 16°53'10" 
WEST, 285.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 48°01'13" WEST, 578.97 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 11°23'04" WEST, 377.90 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 82°57'21" 
EAST, 37.41 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07°02'39" WEST, 141.72 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 12°01'58" WEST, 50.00 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE 
LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF 
SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 295.32 FEET, 
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 46.76 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 82°30'29" WEST, 46.71 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 02°57'04" WEST, 142.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 17°22'21" 
WEST, 278.60 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12°57'52" WEST, 164.97 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 77°01'54" WEST, 17.28 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE 
LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF 
SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 225.44 FEET, 
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 37.52 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 81°48'51" WEST, 37.48 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 03°50'10" WEST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02°54'46" 
WEST, 182.03 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°56'20" WEST, 316.39 FEET, TO 
THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID SECTION 41; THENCE SOUTH 71°03'40" 
EAST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 673.82 FEET, TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF 
THOSE LANDS DESCRIBED AND RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1566 
,PAGE 150 OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE NORTH 02°05'25" WEST, 
ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 759.38 FEET, TO THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LAST 
SAID LANDS; THENCE NORTH 87°54'35" EAST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 
944.62 FEET, TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF THOSE LANDS DESCRIBED AND 
RECORDED IN OFFICAL RECORDS BOOK 1335, PAGE 322 OF SAID PUBLIC 
RECORDS; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, RUN THE 



FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES AND DISTANCES: COURSE NO. 1: NORTH 
02°05'24" WEST, 869.00 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A 
CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; COURSE NO. 2: NORTHERLY, ALONG AND 
AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 2392.01 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 604.30 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 05°08'50" 
EAST, 602.69 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; 
COURSE NO. 3: NORTH 12°23'05" EAST, 160.63 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING.  
 
CONTAINING 51.28 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 



ASSESSMENT AREA 3 PHASE 3 
 
A PORTION OF THE JOSE PAPY GRANT, SECTION 38, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ST. 
JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
 
COMMENCE AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID SECTION 5 WITH THE WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PACETTI ROAD (COUNTY ROAD NO. 13A, A 100 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY AS NOW 
ESTABLISHED); THENCE NORTH 71°03'40" WEST, ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE OF SECTION 5, A 
DISTANCE OF 4096.34 FEET, TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID LINE; THENCE NORTH 60°13'49" WEST, 
CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE, 316.82 FEET, TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THOSE LANDS 
DESCRIBED AND RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3781, PAGE 1556 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
SAID COUNTY; THENCE SOUTH 01°22'25" EAST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 2320.58 FEET, TO THE 
SOUTHERLY LINE OF LAST SAID LANDS; THENCE SOUTH 88°48'01" WEST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 
1104.33 FEET, TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID SECTION 38 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
SOUTH 03°20'35" EAST, ALONG LAST SAID LINE, 2086.25 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THOSE 
LANDS DESCRIBED AND RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2450, PAGE 97 OF SAID PUBLIC 
RECORDS; THENCE WESTERLY AND NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTHERLY AND SOUTHWESTERLY 
LINE OF LAST SAID LANDS, RUN THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES AND DISTANCES: COURSE NO. 1: 
NORTH 86°59'59" WEST, 863.15 FEET; COURSE NO. 2: NORTH 46°05'12" WEST, 1430.00 FEET; COURSE 
NO. 3: NORTH 45°06'48" WEST, 648.86 FEET; THENCE NORTH 24°27'36" EAST, 789.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 65°06'32" EAST, 16.92 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, 
ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 60.00 
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 81.05 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND 
DISTANCE OF NORTH 75°45'21" EAST, 75.03 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 54°03'57" EAST, 96.48 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 40°05'02" EAST, 756.65 FEET; THENCE NORTH 44°31'10" EAST, 80.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
38°45'17" EAST, 77.60 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING 
A RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 13.82 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 53°46'12" EAST, 13.79 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND 
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 39.69 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 
53°05'41" EAST, 39.62 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 45°28'50" EAST, 79.14 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE 
OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF 
SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1170.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
232.91 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 39°46'39" 
EAST, 232.53 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 34°04'29" EAST, 79.49 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 55°55'31" EAST, 73.31 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHERLY; 
THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 30.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 26.91 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 15°54'44" EAST, 26.02 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND 
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 61.95 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 
32°22'04" EAST, 61.68 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 50.89 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 37°42'12" EAST, 50.34 FEET, TO THE 



POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 52°16'54" EAST, 335.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF 
SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 117.44 
FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 85°55'31" EAST, 
110.80 FEET, TO THE POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; 
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 285.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 87.63 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 
CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 51°37'21" EAST, 87.29 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE 
CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND 
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1215.00 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 147.49 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
SOUTH 46°17'29" EAST, 147.40 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 
SOUTHEASTERLY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 
SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 53.61 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 24°10'17" EAST, 51.85 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 71°50'36" EAST, 138.02 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°09'24" EAST, 203.99 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
71°50'36" WEST, 6.67 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 18°09'24" EAST, 135.05 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 73°49'11" 
WEST, 13.85 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 76°14'40" WEST, 53.95 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A 
CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID 
CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 4.91 FEET, 
SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 66°51'39" WEST, 4.89 
FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 57°28'38" WEST, 38.60 FEET, TO 
THE AFORESAID EASTERLY LINE OF SECTION 38; THENCE SOUTH 03°24'48" EAST, ALONG LAST SAID 
LANDS, 361.22 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 107.18 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  

































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Consideration:  $10.00 
Documentary Stamps:  $.70 
 
Prepared by and when 
recorded return to: 
 
Rachael L. Greenstein, Esq. 
MAHONEY LAW GROUP, P.A. 
2240 Belleair Road 
Suite 210 
Clearwater, Florida 33764 
 
Folio #s: 029011-0001; 029011-0021; A Portion of 029002-0001; 029012-0001, 029012-0002;  
A Portion of 029010-0000; 029012-0004; 029012-0005; 029002-0004; 029002-0005; 
029002-0007; and 029002-0009 
 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 
 

THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED (“Deed”) is made this _____ day of _________, 2022, 
by SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(“Grantor”), whose address is 7807 Baymeadows Road East, Suite 205, Jacksonville, Florida 32256, 
in favor of SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (“Grantee”), 
whose address is 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. Augustine, Florida 
32092. 
 

WITNESSETH, that Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and 00/100 Dollars 
($10.00), and other valuable consideration, lawful money of the United States of America, to it in 
hand paid by Grantee, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and 
conveyed to Grantee, its successors and assigns forever, all of the following described land in St. 
Johns County, Florida (“Property”): 

 
That certain real property which is more particularly described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
Together with all appurtenances thereunto appertaining, and all fixtures and improvements 

located thereon. 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with the appurtenances, unto Grantee, its 

successors and assigns, in fee simple forever, for the purposes set forth on the applicable subdivision 
plats. By acceptance hereof, Grantee acknowledges its responsibility for maintenance and operation 
of the Property. 

 
 This conveyance is subject to: (a) governmental requirements and restrictions (including, 
without limitation, zoning and land use ordinances); and (b) all easements, covenants, conditions, 
restrictions, reservations and other matters of record, including, without limitation, all matters set 
forth on, and rights and interests reserved to Grantor as “Owner” pursuant to the applicable 
subdivision plat; however, reference hereto will not operate to reimpose the same. 
 

THIS IS A CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY TO A COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR OWNERSHIP, OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE PURPOSES.   NO CONSIDERATION HAS BEEN DELIVERED 



2 
 

FOR THIS TRANSFER; THEREFORE, ONLY MINIMUM DOCUMENTARY 
STAMP TAXES ARE DUE. 
 

 Subject to the matters noted in this Deed, Grantor does hereby warrant title to the Property, 
and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through or under 
Grantor, but against none other. 
 
 Grantor warrants that Grantor has complied with the provisions of Section 196.295, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
 

[Signature on the following page.] 



3 
 

[Grantor’s Signature Page to Special Warranty Deed] 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed this Deed as of the date first above written. 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of: SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC,  

a Delaware limited liability company 
 
 
      By:   __________________________________ 
Print Name:                Liam O’Reilly, Vice President 
 
  
Print Name:      
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF __________________ 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ▢ physical presence or 
▢ online notarization this _____ day of ______________, 2022, by Liam O’Reilly, as Vice President 
of Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on behalf of the 
company, (check one)	 ▢	 who is personally known to me or ▢	 who has produced a 
__________________________ as identification.   
 
       _____________________________________ 
 Notary Public, State of Florida 
 My Commission Expires: 

 Affix Notary Seal Below:   
 
 
 

 
[Signatures Continued on Following Page]



4 
 

[Grantee’s Signature Page to Special Warranty Deed] 
 

 
ACCEPTED BY GRANTEE: 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered   SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY    
in the presence of:    DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of  
      special-purpose government established pursuant to  
      Chapter 190, Florida Statutes 
 
  By:                       
Print Name:            Gregg Kern, Chairman 
 
 
   
Print Name:   
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF __________________ 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ▢ physical presence or 
▢ online notarization this _____ day of _______________, 2022, by Gregg Kern, as Chairman of the 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose government 
established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, on behalf of said entity, (check one) ▢ who is 
personally known to me or ▢ who has produced a __________________________ as identification.   
 
       _____________________________________ 
 Notary Public, State of Florida 
 My Commission Expires: 

 Affix Notary Seal Below:   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of the Property 
 
Tracts E-1, R-1, and R-2, WHISPER CREEK PHASE 1 UNITS A AND B, according to the map or plat 
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 73, Pages 4 through 27, of the Public Records of St. Johns County, 
Florida. 
 
Tracts A and B, WHISPER CREEK PHASE 3 UNIT A, according to the map or plat thereof, as recorded 
in Plat Book 86, Pages 41 through 44, of the Public Records of St. Johns County, Florida. 
 
Tract 14, TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL – PHASE 1, according to the map or plat thereof, as recorded in 
Plat Book 104, Pages 1 through 16, inclusive, of the Public Records of St. Johns County, Florida, together 
with the non-exclusive easement over the areas designated on such plat as “Drainage/Maintenance 
Easement” or “D.E.” over Tract 14. 
 
Tracts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7, WHISPER CREEK PHASE 9 UNIT A, according to the map or plat thereof, 
as recorded in Plat Book 111, Pages 62 through 69, inclusive, of the Public Records of St. Johns County, 
Florida. 
 
Tracts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12 and 13, WHISPER CREEK PHASE 9 UNIT B, according to the 
map or plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 113, Pages 25 through 34, inclusive, of the Public Records 
of St. Johns County, Florida. 
 
Tracts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10, WHISPER CREEK PHASE 9 UNIT C, according to the map or plat 
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 111, Pages 70 through 77, inclusive, of the Public Records of St. Johns 
County, Florida. 
 
Tracts 2-1, 2-2, 2-5, 2-6 and 2-8, TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL - PHASE 2 UNIT A, according to the 
map or plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 116, Pages 18 through 26, inclusive, of the Public Records 
of St. Johns County, Florida, together with all road rights of way shown on said plat and all improvements 
located within the road rights of way, and designated on said plat as Amberwood Drive, Bees Knees Way, 
Blackbird Lane, and Sundance Drive. 
 
Tracts 2-3, 2-4 and 2-7, TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL – PHASE 2 UNIT B, according to the map or 
plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 116, Pages 27 through 34, inclusive, of the Public Records of St. 
Johns County, Florida, together with the road right of way shown on said plat and all improvements 
located within the road right of way, and designated on said plat as Amberwood Drive. 
 
Tracts 2-9, 2-11 and 2-12, TRAILMARK EAST PARCEL – PHASE 2 UNIT C, according to the map or 
plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 116, Pages 35 through 40, inclusive, of the Public Records of St. 
Johns County, Florida, together with the road rights of way shown on said plat and all improvements 
located within the road rights of way, and designated on said plat as Applejack Drive, Blackbird Lane, 
and Rustic Mill Drive. 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Upon recording, this instrument should be returned 
to: 
 
Six Mile Creek CDD 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
 

(This space reserved for Clerk) 

 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION AND 
ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION AND ACCESS EASEMENT 
AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into effective as of this _____ day of 
___________________, 2022, by and between _____________________________, a 
___________________________________, whose address is 
________________________________ (“Grantor”) in favor of Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District, a local unit of special purpose government established pursuant to 
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located within St. Johns County, whose mailing address is 475 
West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“Grantee”) (Grantor and Grantee 
are sometimes together referred to herein as the “Parties”, and separately as the “Party”).  
 

W I T N E S S E T H :  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of that certain parcel of real property 
located in St. Johns County, Florida, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and by this reference incorporated herein (the “Easement Area”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee intends to construct those certain improvements described in more 
detail on Exhibit “B” attached hereto (the “Improvements”) within the Easement Area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, until construction of the Improvements is completed, Grantor desires to 
grant to Grantee a temporary, non-exclusive construction and access easement on, upon, over, 
under, across, and through the Easement Area for the sole purpose of constructing the 
Improvements. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) in 
hand paid by the Grantee to the Grantor, the mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of which are 
hereby expressly acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein 
by this reference. 

2. Temporary Construction Easement.  Grantor does hereby grant, bargain, sell 
and convey to Grantee a temporary, non-exclusive easement on, upon, over, under, across and 



through the Easement Area for access, ingress, egress and to allow Grantee to complete the 
construction of the Improvements (collectively, the “Easements”). 

3. Term of Easement.  Grantee shall be permitted to use the Easements during the 
period beginning with the date first written above and continuing until the Improvements have 
been completed in accordance with this Agreement.  Grantor acknowledges that so long as the 
final Improvements constructed within the Easement Area generally conform to the types and 
nature of the Improvements described on Exhibit “B”, that Grantee shall have exercised its 
rights hereunder in conformity with the terms hereof.   

4. Beneficiaries of Easement Rights.  The Easements set forth in this Agreement 
shall be for the sole benefit and use of Grantee, its successors and assigns, and Grantee’s agents, 
employees, consultants, representatives, contractors and providers of emergency services and 
utility services. 

5. Amendments and Waivers.  This Agreement may not be terminated or amended, 
modified, altered, or changed in any respect whatsoever, except by a further agreement in writing 
duly executed by the Parties and recorded in the Public Records of St. Johns County, Florida.  
No delay or omission of any Party in the exercise of any right accruing upon any default of any 
Party shall impair such right or be construed to be a waiver thereof, and every such right may be 
exercised at any time during the continuance of such default.  A waiver by any Party of a breach 
of, or a default in, any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by any other Party shall not 
be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of or default in the same or any other 
provision of this Agreement.  No breach of the provisions of this Agreement shall entitle any 
Party to cancel, rescind or otherwise terminate this Agreement, but such limitation shall not 
affect, in any manner, any other rights or remedies which any Party may have by reason of any 
breach of the provisions of this Agreement. 

6. Notices.  Any notices which may be permitted or required hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) three (3) days after depositing with the 
United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, (ii) one day after depositing with a nationally 
recognized overnight courier service, or (iii) on the day of hand delivery (provided such delivery 
occurs prior to 5:00 pm, E.S.T. or E.D.T., as applicable), to the address listed above or to such 
other address as either Party may from time to time designate by written notice in accordance 
with this paragraph. 

7. Use of Easement Area.  It is acknowledged and agreed that the Easements 
granted under this Agreement are not exclusive easements and that Grantor shall have the right 
to use and enjoy the Easement Area in any manner not inconsistent with the easement rights 
created herein, and grant others the right to do so. 

8. Effective Date.  The Effective Date of the Agreement shall be the last day that 
this Agreement is signed by either Party. 

9. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the Parties 
with respect to the matters set forth herein and no other agreement, oral or written, not set forth 
herein, nor any course of dealings of the Parties, shall be deemed to alter or affect the terms and 



conditions set forth herein.  If any provision of this Agreement, or portion thereof, or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances, shall, to the extent be held invalid, 
inoperative or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such 
provision or portion thereof to any other persons or circumstances, shall not be affected thereby; 
it shall not be deemed that any such invalid provision affects the consideration for this 
Agreement; and each provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest 
extent permitted by law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Florida.  Venue for any proceeding brought hereunder shall be St. Johns County, 
Florida. In the event of any dispute hereunder or of any action to interpret or enforce this 
Agreement, any provision hereof or any matter arising herefrom, the predominantly prevailing 
party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses, whether suit 
be brought or not, and whether in settlement, in any declaratory action, at trial or on appeal.  The 
section headings in this Agreement are for convenience only, shall in no way define or limit the 
scope or content of this Agreement, and shall not be considered in any construction or 
interpretation of this Agreement or any part hereof.  Where the sense of this Agreement requires, 
any reference to a term in the singular shall be deemed to include the plural of said term, and any 
reference to a term in the plural shall be deemed to include the singular of said term.  Nothing in 
this Agreement shall be construed to make the Parties hereto partners or joint venturers or render 
either of said parties liable for the debts or obligations of the other. This Agreement may be 
executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but all taken together shall 
constitute one and the same Agreement.    This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of Grantor and Grantee and their respective successors and assigns.  The rights, privileges 
and Easements granted and conveyed hereunder shall be a burden upon the Easement Area and 
shall exist for the benefit of and run with title to the Easement Area. 

 
 
 
 

[Signatures appear on the following pages.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the day and year first written above. 
 
       “GRANTOR” 
 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit 
of special-purpose government established 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes 

Signed, sealed and delivered     
in the presence of:      
 
 
 
       By:       
Print Name:      Name:       
       Title:       
 
 
       
Print Name:      
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
________________, 2022, by _________________________, as _________________________ 
of __________________ COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.  He/She is 
personally known to me or has produced 
________________________________________________________________ as identification. 
 
 
 

       
(Signature of Notary Public) 
 
       
(Typed name of Notary Public) 
Notary Public, State of Florida 
Commission No.:     
My Commission Expires:    
 



       “GRANTEE” 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered    _____________________ 
in the presence of:     _____________________, 
       a ______________________ 
 
 
 
       By:       
Print Name:      Name:       
       Title:       
 
       
Print Name:      
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
_________________, 2022, by _________________, as _____________________ of 
__________________________, a _____________________.  He/She is personally known to 
me or has produced ___________________________ as identification. 
 
 
 

       
(Signature of Notary Public) 
 
       
(Typed name of Notary Public) 
Notary Public, State of Florida 
Commission No.:     
My Commission Expires:    

 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

EASEMENT AREA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “B” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Prepared by: 
 
 
 
 
 GRANT OF EASEMENT 
 

THIS INDENTURE, made this ____ day of ____________, 2022, between 
GLENN E. EAST and JOYCE C. EAST, husband and wife, whose address is 
________________________________________hereinafter called Grantor, and ST. JOHNS 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, whose address is 4020 
Lewis Speedway, St. Augustine, Florida 32084, hereinafter called Grantee. 
 

WITNESSETH: That Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) 
and other good and valuable consideration to them in hand paid by Grantee, the receipt of which 
hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed to the Grantee, his successors 
and assigns forever, an  easement for the purpose of the  construction, placement, operation, 
maintenance, repair, replacement and reconstruction of traffic control device structures 
(including poles, signage and mast arms), drainage pipe and sidewalk  for the use of the general 
public, with the right, privilege, and authority to said Grantee, its successors and assigns, the 
right to construct, lay, maintain, improve, and/or repair either above or below the surface of the 
ground, on, along, over, through, across, or under the following described land situate in St. 
Johns County, Florida to wit: 
 

Property as described on attached Exhibit “A”, incorporated by reference and made 
a part hereof. 

 
TOGETHER with the right of said Grantee, its successors and assigns, of ingress and egress, to 
and over said above described premises, and for doing anything necessary or useful or 
convenient, or removing at any time and all of said improvements upon, over, under, or in said 
lands, together also with the right and easement, privileges, and appurtenances in and to said land 
which may be required for the enjoyment of rights herein granted.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Grantor has hereunto set hand and seal the day and  
year first above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in Our     
Presence as Witnesses: 
 
(sign)______________________    ___________________________ 



(print)_____________________    GLENN E. EAST   
                                      
(sign)______________________    ___________________________ 
(print)_____________________    JOYCE C. EAST 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS 
 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ______, 2022, 
by Glenn E. East and Joyce C. East, husband and wife.  Who is/are personally known to me or 
has produced _______________________________ as identification. 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Notary Public 
        My Commission Expires:_________ 
 
  



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Mtg. Agendas\SMC CDD November 16, 2022.doc 11/10/2022 

 

 

 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
 

November 16, 2022 

 

 

1. Consideration of Requisitions 163 

2020 Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A (East Parcel Phase 1) 

 

2. Consideration of Requisitions 163 - 167 

 2021 Capital Improvement Review Bonds, Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 (Phases  9 & 11) 

 

3. Consideration of Requisition 35 - 36 

 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Assessment Area 3, Phase 2 (Phase 10) 

  

 4. Consideration of Requisitions  83 - 90 

  2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (AA2, Phase 3B) (East Parcel Phase 2)  

 

 5. Ratification of Carter Environmental Services Proposal 

  Pacetti Road Buffer Protected Tree Inventory 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Scott A. Wild 

District Engineer 

England-Thims & Miller, Inc. 
 



                                  2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3B) (East Parcel Phase 2) BOND SERIES

Date of 

Requisition Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

11/16/2022 163 ETM Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 Amenity Center Limted Contract Administration (WA#62) Invoice 205612 (Oct 2022) 3,545.00$                  

2020 Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A (East Parcel Phase 1) BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED (Developer Funded) 3,545.00$                

Date of 

Requisition Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

11/16/2022 163 The Tree Amigos Outdoor Services, Inc. Trailmark Phases 9A-9B - Contractor Application No. 2 (Oct 2022) 69,339.00$                   

11/16/2022 164 ETM Phases 9A, 9B and 9C CEI Services - WA#53 - Invoice 205605 (Oct 2022) 3,939.41$                     

11/16/2022 165 ETM Trailmark Phase 11 CEI (WA#63) Invoice 205609 (Oct 2022) 17,940.26$                   

11/16/2022 166 Jax Utilities Management, Inc. Contractor Application for Payment #11 - Trailmark Ph 11A & 11B site work & utilties (Oct 2022) 778,839.96$                 

11/16/2022 167 Vallencourt Construction - WIRE Trailmark Phase 9 (9A, 9B, 9C)- Application for Payment No. 21 (Oct 2022) 35,017.89$                   

905,076.52$            

Date of 

Requisition Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

11/16/2022 35 ETM RFP for Trailmark Phase 10 CEI Services (WA#66) Invoice 205614 (Oct 2022) 4,564.98$                  

11/16/2022 36 Besch & Smith Trailmark Phase 10 - Application for Payment No. 6 (Oct 2022) 280,662.27$              

285,227.25$            

Date of 

Requisition Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

11/16/2022 83 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Trailmark Amenity Expansion - Invoice 9155 (Oct 2022) 900.00$                     

11/16/2022 84 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Trailmark Amenity Expansion - Invoice 9095 (Sept 2022) 2,550.00$                  

11/16/2022 85 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Reverie@Trailmark - Invoice 9126 (Oct 2022) 3,909.38$                  

11/16/2022 86 Micamy Design  Studio Reverie at Trailmaik Amenity FF&E - Invoice F21-041.1-03 58,514.94$                

11/16/2022 87 Carlton Construction, Inc. Reverie Amenity - Contractor Application for Payment No. 12 (Oct 2022) 411,909.04$              

11/16/2022 88 ETM Trailmark Amenity Center Phase 2-Construction Documents (WA#55) Invoice 205606 - Final Bill (Oct 2022) 2,470.00$                  

11/16/2022 89 ETM Trailmark East Parcel Phase 2 CEI (WA#61) Invoice 205611 (Oct 2022) 5,989.53$                  

11/16/2022 90 Besch & Smith Trailmark East Parcel Phase 2 - Application for Payment No.11 (Oct 2022) 773,543.94$              

1,259,786.83$           

TOTAL REQUISITONS TO BE APPROVED November 16, 2002 2,453,635.60$           

                     2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (A/C 226000005) (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3B) (East Parcel Phase 2) BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (AA 3, Phase 2) (Phase 10) BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3B) (East Parcel Phase 2) BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED (DEVELOPER FUNDED)

16-Nov-22

2020 Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A (East Parcel Phase 1) BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED (Developer Funded)

2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (AA3 Phase 1) (Phases 9 & 11) BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED (DEVELOPER FUNDED)

2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (Assessment Area 3, Phase 2) (Phase 10) BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (AA3 Phase 1) (Phases 9 & 11) BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

2020 AA2 Phase 3A (East Parcel Phase 1) (Developer Funded)

REQUISITION SUMMARY

2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds (AA3 Phase 1) (Phases 9 & 11) BOND SERIES
2021 Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (AA 3, Phase 2) (Phase 10) BOND SERIES

2017 NW Parcel (Phase 6) Bonds

SMC REQ LIST OCTOBER 19, 2022

mailto:Reverie@Trailmark%20-%20Invoice%209126%20(Oct%202022)


42 Masters Drive 
St. Augustine, FL 32084 

Tel: 904.540.1786 
www.carterenv.com  

PROJECT PROPOSAL / AUTHORIZATION FORM 
To: Gregg Kern Company: Six Mile Creek CDD 
Date: November 3, 2022 Address: 14701 Phillips Hwy. Ste 300, Jacksonville, FL 32256 
Project Name: Trailmark Project Location: St Johns County, FL 
Fax No: --     Email: WildS@etminc.com  CES Ref #: 5.21389 

Gregg Kern is authorizing Carter Environmental Services, Inc., to conduct services 
for the above referenced project.  The services will be billed on the following basis: 
Time & Material $        Not to Exceed $ 1,500 
Fixed Fee                $   Retainer $ 
Services to be provided: 

Task 1:      Protected Tree Inventory 
Carter Environmental Services (CES) will conduct an inventory of protected trees within the western 25’ of the 50’ 
buffer along Pacetti Rd. for the Trailmark development, Phase 3 as identified on a PDF received via email from Scott 
Wild, ETM on Nov. 2, 2022. All protected trees as defined in St Johns County Land Development Code, Art XII will 
be identified, flagged, located using a sub-meter accurate global positioning system (GPS), and diameter at breast 
height (DBH) measured. CES will create a summary map, DWG, and table of our findings and provide it to the 
landscape architect, engineer and/or surveyor for their review and use. Any trees encountered 40” DBH and up will 
be measured and scored to determine if they meet requirements for Specimen Tree protections according to St. Johns 
County Land Development Code, Art IV.  

Carter Environmental Services, Inc., will work on the tasks described above using the outlined cost as Not to Exceed for each task. Our Not to Exceed 
fee for Task 1 is $1,500.00. We are prepared to begin work upon receipt of the signed contract and anticipate completion within 3 weeks. 
TERMS: 
 CES will complete the work described above in a timely manner unless delayed by client's request, lack of information, or intervening factors

beyond our control. 
 Client assures CES that it has permission to work on the subject property and will advise CES of proper procedures for accessing subject

property. 
 Carter Environmental Services, Inc., will maintain a minimum $1,000,000 error and omissions insurance and $1,000,000 liability insurance for

the duration of the project. 
 Outside services and expenses, such as subcontractors and special purchases, will be invoiced with a handling fee of 18 percent. 
 Client will provide CES with any special billing formats or considerations with the signed contract. 
 Billing is done monthly. Payment is due immediately upon receipt of the invoice; after 30 days the client agrees to pay 1.5 percent late fee per

month or portion thereof on unpaid balances. Unpaid balances after 60 days from the date of the invoice may result in work stoppage until
overdue accounts are resolved. 

 Failure to pay within 60 days from the date of invoice will be considered by CES to be a breach of contract, and CES may cease work and
withhold all work product immediately without penalty from the client. 

 Any disputes regarding payment for services shall be resolved in a court in the county of the CES office responsible for the work. Client agrees 
to pay all legal fees and other collection costs incurred by CES to collect unpaid invoices. 

Senior Project 
Manager 

 Tyler Mosteller Client 

November 3, 2022 
Date Date 

If you have difficulty in receiving this message, please call (904) 874-6499 and request to speak to the person listed below. 
Contact: Tyler Mosteller 

11/4/2022

INCLUDE ON THE RATIFICATION LIST

http://www.carterenv.com/
mailto:WildS@etminc.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 

Six Mile Creek CDD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Alex Boyer 

November 2022 

Facility Manager Report 

 

 



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   2 

 
To: Six Mile Creek CDD          Board of Directors          Via E-mail 
      Jim Oliver                          District Manager             Via E-mail 
      Wes Haber                        District Attorney               Via E-mail 
       
 
 

Facility Usage 
 
Fob systems is down. 
 
 
Administrative Projects 

• Staff continue to add new residents to community website, e-mail list, and access 
control software. 

• Staff continue to provide site tours to prospective buyers 

• Staff continue to provide new owners with mailbox keys and community 
welcome packets. 

 

Proposals 
 
 
 

Maintenance Projects Completed 
• Landscape project Riverstone entrance planters 

• Sod and cutbacks on Backcreek Dr 

• Pool pump 2 replacement 

• Welcome center main line cleanout & faucet replacement 
 

 
 

Maintenance Projects in Process 
• Fob system computer boards have been replaced, only breeze way is still down 

• Electrical board replacement for Fireplace in camp house  

• Camp house fan replacement project 

• Landscape grasses cut back/trim 
 

 
 

Board Discussion Items 

• N/A 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Unaudited Financial	Reporting

October 31,	2022



1-2

3-4

5-6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Debt Service Series 2021 AA2 PH3B Income Statement

Assessment Receipt Schedule

Debt Service Series 2017A Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2016A Income Statement

Reverie Fund (East Parcel) Income Statement

Reverie (East Parcel) Month to Month

Debt Service Series 2021 AA3 PH2 Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2020 Income Statement

Table of Contents

Balance Sheet

Debt Service Series 2007A Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2015 Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2017B Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2021 AA3 PH1 Income Statement

General Fund Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2016B Income Statement

Developer Contributions Schedule

General Fund Month to Month



21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Series 2017A Construction Schedule

Capital Projects Series 2007A Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2021 AA3 PH1 Income Statement

Series 2016A Construction Schedule

Capital Projects Series 2017A Income Statement

Table of Contents

Series 2021 AA3 PH1 Construction Schedule

Series 2017A-NW Parcel Construction Schedule

Series 2017B Construction Schedule

Capital Projects Series 2017B Income Statement

Series 2016B Construction Schedule

Capital Projects Series 2021 AA3 PH2 Income Statement

Series 2021 AA3 PH2 Construction Schedule

Series 2021 AA2 PH3B Construction Schedule

Capital Projects Series 2020 Income Statement

Series 2020 Construction Schedule

Capital Projects Series 2016A Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2016B Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2021 AA2 PH3B Income Statement



Totals
  Debt Capital (Memorandum Only)
 General Reverie (East Parcel) Service Projects 2023

ASSETS:   
Cash $98,726 $35,248 --- --- $133,974
Prepaid Expenses $625 $2,272 --- --- $2,897
Investments:
Custody Account $35,211 --- --- --- $35,211
Series 2007

Reserve --- --- $25,481 --- $25,481
Construction --- --- --- $2,183 $2,183

Series 2015
Reserve --- --- $159,469 --- $159,469
Revenue --- --- $92,046 --- $92,046

Series 2016A
Reserve --- --- $442,600 --- $442,600
Revenue --- --- $371,448 --- $371,448
Prepayment --- --- $0 --- $0
Construction --- --- --- $646,437 $646,437

Series 2016B
Reserve --- --- $55,225 --- $55,225
Revenue --- --- $28,500 --- $28,500
Prepayment --- --- $0 --- $0
Optional Redemption --- --- $2 --- $2
Construction --- --- --- $1,234 $1,234

Series 2017A
Reserve --- --- $701,088 --- $701,088
Revenue --- --- $457,740 --- $457,740
Interest --- --- $1 --- $1
Prepayment --- --- $700 --- $700
Construction --- --- --- $0 $0
Construction - NW Parcel --- --- --- $908 $908

Series 2017B
Reserve --- --- $13,843 --- $13,843
Revenue --- --- $8,036 --- $8,036
Interest --- --- $69 --- $69
Prepayment --- --- $53,615 --- $53,615
Construction --- --- --- $2 $2

Series 2020
Reserve --- --- $414,875 --- $414,875
Revenue --- --- $288,456 --- $288,456
Construction --- --- --- $191 $191

Series 2021 AA3 Ph1
Reserve --- --- $566,450 --- $566,450
Revenue --- --- $182,144 --- $182,144
Construction --- --- --- $188 $188

Series 2021 AA3 Ph2
Reserve --- --- $149,384 --- $149,384
Revenue --- --- $4 --- $4
Capitalized Interest --- --- $47,470 --- $47,470
Construction --- --- --- $1,266,998 $1,266,998

Series 2021 AA2 Ph3B
Reserve --- --- $460,875 --- $460,875
Revenue --- --- $889 --- $889
Capitalized Interest --- --- $148,226 --- $148,226
Construction --- --- --- $5 $5

Due from Capital Projects ($738) --- --- $956 $218
Due from Developer --- --- --- $2,294,309 $2,294,309
Due from General Fund --- $955 --- $5,153 $6,108
Due from Reverie --- --- --- --- $0

TOTAL ASSETS $133,825 $38,474 $4,668,635 $4,218,564 $9,059,499

Governmental Fund Types

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Combined Balance Sheet
October 31, 2022

1



Totals
  Debt Capital (Memorandum Only)
 General Reverie (East Parcel) Service Projects 2023

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $14,069 $6,768 --- $2,520,543 $2,541,380
Retainage Payable --- --- --- $286,470 $286,470
Due to Capital Projects $5,153 --- --- $956 $6,109
Due to Reverie $955 --- --- --- $955
FUND BALANCES:  
Unrestricted for Debt Service Series 2007 --- --- $25,481 --- $25,481
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2015 --- --- $251,515 --- $251,515
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2016A --- --- $814,048 --- $814,048
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2016B --- --- $83,727 --- $83,727
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2017A --- --- $1,159,529 --- $1,159,529
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2017B --- --- $75,563 --- $75,563
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2020 --- --- $703,331 --- $703,331
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2021 AA3 Ph1 --- --- $748,594 --- $748,594
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2021 AA3 Ph2 --- --- $196,857 --- $196,857
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2021 AA2 Ph3B --- --- $609,989 --- $609,989
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2007 --- --- --- $2,183 $2,183
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2016A --- --- --- $649,634 $649,634
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2016B --- --- --- $1,234 $1,234
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2017A --- --- --- ($223,370) ($223,370)
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2017B --- --- --- $2 $2
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2020 --- --- --- $191 $191
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2021 Ph1 --- --- --- ($286,282) ($286,282)
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2021 Ph2 --- --- --- $1,266,998 $1,266,998
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2021 Ph3B --- --- --- $5 $5
Unassigned $113,648 $31,707 --- --- $145,355

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $133,825 $38,474 $4,668,635 $4,218,564 $9,059,499

Community Development District
Combined Balance Sheet

October 31, 2022

Governmental Fund Types

Six Mile Creek

2



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22  THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $1,234,800 $0 $0 $0
Special Assessments - Direct Billed Platted $66,600 $66,600 $0 ($66,600)
Special Assessment - Direct Billed Unplatted $66,177 $66,177 $0 ($66,177)
Miscellaneous Income $0 $0 $813 $813 *

Rental Income $0 $0 $250 $250
Interest $0 $0 $300 $300

   
TOTAL  REVENUES $1,367,577 $132,777 $1,363 ($131,414)

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:
Supervisors Fees $12,000 $1,000 $800 $200
FICA Expense $918 $77 $61 $15
Engineering Fees $16,000 $1,333 $1,873 ($539)
Arbitrage $4,200 $0 $0 $0
Trustee Fees $30,170 $0 $0 $0
Dissemination $7,500 $625 $625 $0
Attorney Fees $30,000 $2,500 $0 $2,500
Annual Audit $6,100 $0 $0 $0
Assessment Administration $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $0
Management Fees $38,000 $3,167 $3,167 ($0)
Information Technology $1,300 $108 $108 $0
Website Administration $800 $67 $67 ($0)
Telephone $750 $63 $91 ($28)
Postage $1,500 $125 $297 ($172)
Insurance $7,725 $7,725 $6,918 $807
Printing & Binding $2,500 $208 $167 $41
Travel Per Diem $250 $21 $0 $21
Legal Advertising $5,000 $417 $234 $183
Meeting Room Fees $6,750 $563 $563 $0
Bank Fees $1,500 $125 $0 $125
Other Current Charges $300 $25 $0 $25
Office Supplies $350 $29 $6 $23
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $181,288 $25,852 $22,651 $3,201

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE:
Property Insurance $31,735 $31,735 $28,984 $2,751
Electric $60,000 $5,000 $5,162 ($162)
Water & Sewer $8,000 $667 $0 $667
Landscape Maintenance $300,000 $25,000 $19,152 $5,848
Landscape - Mulch & Plant Installation $105,000 $8,750 $0 $8,750
Landscape Contingency $80,000 $6,667 $4,883 $1,784
Irrigation Maintenance $30,000 $2,500 $0 $2,500
Lake Maintenance $40,000 $3,333 $1,675 $1,658
Lake Contingency $7,500 $625 $0 $625
Security Patrol $55,000 $4,583 $4,425 $158
Street Sweeping $8,000 $667 $0 $667
General Maintenance $15,000 $1,250 $0 $1,250
Dog Park - General Maintenance $5,000 $417 $0 $417
Kayak Launch - General Maintenance $5,000 $417 $0 $417

TOTAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE $750,235 $91,610 $64,281 $27,329

October 31, 2022

3



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22  THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

AMENITY CENTER
Utilities
     Telephone $7,500 $625 $217 $408
     Electric $20,000 $1,667 $1,219 $448
     Water/Irrigation $45,000 $3,750 $2,486 $1,264
     Cable $5,000 $417 $0 $417
     Gas $1,250 $104 $0 $104
     Trash Removal $3,000 $250 $244 $6
Security
     Security Alarm Monitoring $1,100 $92 $35 $57
     Access Cards $1,000 $83 $0 $83
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $43,680 $3,640 $0 $3,640
     Amenity Staff - Rentals $600 $50 $215 ($165)
     Landscape Contingency $3,041 $253 $245 $8
     Field Management/Administrative $59,104 $4,925 $0 $4,925
     Pool Maintenance $23,900 $1,992 $1,575 $417
     Pool Repairs $10,000 $833 $778 $55
     Janitorial Services $18,500 $1,542 $1,542 ($0)
     Janitorial Supplies $5,500 $458 $0 $458
     Facility Maintenance $25,000 $2,083 $0 $2,083
     Fitness Equipment Lease $48,000 $4,000 $469 $3,531
     Pest Control $2,200 $183 $0 $183
Pool Permits $1,000 $83 $0 $83
Maintenance Reserves $10,000 $833 $0 $833
New Capital Projects $25,000 $2,083 $0 $2,083
Special Events $10,000 $833 $0 $833
Holiday Decorations $10,856 $10,856 $8,008 $2,848
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $3,500 $292 $497 ($205)
Operating Supplies $10,000 $833 $0 $833
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $1,700 $142 $0 $142
Contingency $5,000 $417 $0 $417
Operating Reserves $35,623 $2,969 $0 $2,969

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $436,054 $46,289 $17,529 $28,760

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,367,577 $163,751 $104,461 $59,290

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 ($103,097)

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $216,746

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $113,648

October 31, 2022

4



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
General Fund

Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Revenues:

Special Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Assessments - Direct Billed $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Assessments - Lot Closings $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Miscellaneous Income $813 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $813
Rental Income $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250
Interest $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300

Total Revenues $1,363 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,363

Expenditures:

Administrative
Supervisor Fees $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800
FICA Expense $61 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $61
Engineering Fees $1,873 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,873
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Trustee Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Dissemination $625 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $625
Attorney Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Assessment Administration $7,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,500
Management Fees $3,167 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,167
Information Technology $108 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $108
Website Administration $67 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $67
Telephone $91 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $91
Postage $297 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $297
Insurance $6,918 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,918
Printing & Binding $167 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $167
Travel Per Diem $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Legal Advertising $234 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $234
Meeting Room Fee $563 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $563
Bank Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Office Supplies $6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

Total Administrative $22,651 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,651

Operation & Maintenance
Property Insurance $28,984 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,984
Electric $5,162 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,162
Water & Sewer $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Maintenance $19,152 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,152
Landscape - Mulch & Plant Installation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Contingency $4,883 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,883
Irrigation Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Lake Maintenance $1,675 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,675
Lake Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Security Patrol $4,425 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,425
Street Sweeping $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
General Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Dog Park - General Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Kayak Launch - General Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Operation & Maintenance $64,281 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $64,281

5



Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Amenity Center
Utilities
     Telephone $217 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $217
     Electric $1,219 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,219
     Water/Irrigation $2,486 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,486
     Gas $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Trash Removal $244 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $244
Security
     Security Alarm Monitoring $35 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $35
     Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Amenity Staff - Rentals $215 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $215
     Landscape Contingency $245 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $245
     Field Management/Administrative $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Maintenance $1,575 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,575
     Pool Repairs $778 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $778
     Janitorial Services $1,542 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,542
     Janitorial Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Facility Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Fitness Equipment Lease $469 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $469
     Pest Control $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Pool Permits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Maintenance Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
New Capital Projects $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Events $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Holiday Decorations $8,008 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,008
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $497 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $497
Operating Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Amenity Center $17,529 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,529

Total Expenditures $104,461 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $104,461

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) ($103,097) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($103,097)

Six Mile Creek Community Development District
General Fund

6



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Reverie Fund (East Parcel)
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22  THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Tax Roll $198,000 $0 $0 $0

 Developer Contributions $482,300 $40,192 $0 ($40,192)
Miscellaneous Income $0 $0 $250 $250

   
TOTAL  REVENUES $680,300 $40,192 $250 $40,442

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE
Contingency $600 $50 $8 $42

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $600 $50 $8 $42

AMENITY CENTER
Utilities
     Telephone $6,000 $500 $70 $430
     Electric $16,000 $1,333 $0 $1,333
     Water/Irrigation $32,000 $2,667 $515 $2,152
     Cable $3,500 $292 $0 $292
     Gas $12,500 $1,042 $0 $1,042
     Trash Removal $2,500 $208 $0 $208
Security
     Security Monitoring $5,000 $417 $0 $417
     Access Cards $5,000 $417 $0 $417
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $16,000 $1,333 $0 $1,333
     Field Management/Administrative $16,000 $1,333 $0 $1,333
     Pool Attendants $16,000 $1,333 $0 $1,333
     Pool Maintenance $30,000 $2,500 $0 $2,500
     Pool Repair $5,000 $417 $0 $417
     Janitorial Services $18,500 $1,542 $0 $1,542
     Janitorial Supplies $5,000 $417 $0 $417
     Facility Repairs/Maintenance $25,000 $2,083 $0 $2,083
     Fitness Equipment Lease $48,000 $4,000 $0 $4,000
     Landscape Maintenance $46,900 $3,908 $5,717 ($1,808)
     Landscape Seasonal $20,000 $1,667 $0 $1,667
     Landscape Contingency $8,000 $667 $0 $667
     Pest Control $2,200 $183 $0 $183
Pool Permits $1,000 $83 $0 $83
Repairs & Maintenance $5,000 $417 $0 $417
Special Events $5,000 $417 $0 $417
Holiday Decorations $5,000 $5,000 $5,082 ($82)

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $355,100 $34,175 $11,383 $22,792

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
Landscape Maintenance $150,000 $12,500 $0 $12,500
Landscape Contingency $20,000 $1,667 $0 $1,667
Landscape Mulch & Flowers $45,000 $3,750 $0 $3,750
Lake Maintenance $12,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000
Lake Contingency $5,000 $417
Grounds Maintenance $10,000 $833 $0 $833
Pump Repairs $3,000 $250 $0 $250
Streetlight Repairs $10,000 $833 $0 $833
Irrigation Repairs $15,000 $1,250 $605 $645
Field Operations Management $9,600 $800 $0 $800
Routine Road Cleaning $5,000 $417 $0 $417
Dog Park Maintenance $3,000 $250 $103 $147
Pavilion Park Maintenance $10,000 $833 $0 $833
Entry Gate(s) Access Control & Monitoring $22,000 $1,833 $2,472 ($638)
Miscellaneous $5,000 $417 $0 $417

TOTAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE $324,600 $27,050 $3,180 $0

Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $680,300 $61,275 $14,571 $46,704

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 ($14,321)

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $46,027

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $31,707

October 31, 2022

7



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
Reverie Fund (East Parcel)

Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Revenues:

Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Miscellaneous Income $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250

Total Revenues $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250

Expenditures:

Administrative
Contingency $8 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8

Total Administrative $8 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8

Amenity Center
Utilities
     Telephone $70 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70
     Electric $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Water/Irrigation $515 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $515
     Cable $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Gas $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Trash Removal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Security
     Security Monitoring $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Field Management/Administrative $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Attendants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pool Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Janitorial Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Janitorial Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Facility Repairs/Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Fitness Equipment Lease $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Landscape Maintenance $5,717 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,717
     Landscape Seasonal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Landscape Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
     Pest Control $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Pool Permits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Repairs & Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Events $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Holiday Decorations $5,082 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,082

Total Amenity Center $11,383 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,383

Grounds Maintenance
Landscape Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Mulch & Flowers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Lake Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Lake Contingency
Grounds Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Pump Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Streetlight Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Irrigation Repairs $605 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $605
Field Operations Management $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Routine Road Cleaning $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Dog Park Maintenance $103 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $103
Pavilion Park Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Entry Gate(s) Access Control & Monitoring $2,472 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,472
Miscellaneous $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Grounds Maintenance $3,180 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,180

Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $14,571 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,571

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) ($14,321) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($14,321)

8



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $36 $36

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $36 $36

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2007
Debt Service Obligation $0 $0 $0 $0

 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $36

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Debt Service Costs $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $36

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $25,445

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $25,481

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Reserve $25,481  
$25,481  

October 31, 2022

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2007A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

9



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Tax Roll $214,408 $0 $0 $0
Interest Income $250 $21 $406 $385

TOTAL REVENUES $214,658 $21 $406 $215,085

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2015
Interest Expense - 11/1 $56,688 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 05/1 $95,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $56,688 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $208,375 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $6,283 $406

Fund Balance - Beginning $88,768 $251,108

Fund Balance - Ending $95,051 $251,515

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2015
Reserve $159,469  
Revenue $92,046

$251,515  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2015
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

10



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $444,917 $0 $0 $0
Interest Income $25 $2 $997 $995

TOTAL REVENUES $444,942 $2 $997 $995

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016A
Special Call - 11/1 $40,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 11/1 $161,916 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $110,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $159,303 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $471,219 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) ($26,277) $997

Fund Balance - Beginning $364,532 $813,052

Fund Balance - Ending $338,255 $814,048

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2016A
Reserve $442,600  
Revenue $371,448
Prepayment $0

$814,048  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2016A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

11



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Direct $53,169 $0 $0 $0
Interest Income $0 $0 $70 $70

TOTAL REVENUES $53,169 $0 $70 $70

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016B
Interest Expense - 11/1 $26,584 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $26,584 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $53,169 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $70

Fund Balance - Beginning $26,585 $83,657

Fund Balance - Ending $26,585 $83,727

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2016B
Reserve $55,225  
Revenue $28,500
Prepayment $0
Optional Redemption $2

$83,727  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2016B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

12



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $704,394 $0 $0 $0
Interest Income $50 $4 $1,421 $1,417

TOTAL REVENUES $704,444 $4 $1,421 $1,417

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2017A
Interest Expense - 11/1 $254,434 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $190,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $250,991 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $695,425 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $9,019 $1,421

Fund Balance - Beginning $448,785 $1,158,108

Fund Balance - Ending $457,804 $1,159,529

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2017A
Reserve $701,088  
Revenue $457,740
Interest $1
Prepayment $700

$1,159,529  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2017A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

13



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Direct $20,063 $0 $0 $0
Interest $0 $0 $85 $85

TOTAL REVENUES $20,063 $0 $85 $85

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2017B
Interest Expense - 11/1 $10,031 $10,031 $0 $10,031
Interest Expense - 05/1 $10,031 $10,031 $0 $10,031

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $20,063 $20,063 $0 $20,063

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $1 $85

Fund Balance - Beginning $10,305 $75,478

Fund Balance - Ending $10,306 $75,563

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2017B
Reserve $13,843  
Revenue $8,036
Interest $69
Prepayment $53,615

$75,563  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2017B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

14



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $414,875 $0 $0 $0
Interest Income $0 $0 $861 $861

TOTAL REVENUES $414,875 $0 $861 $861

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2020
Interest Expense - 11/1 $138,797 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $135,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $136,688 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $410,484 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $4,391 $861

Fund Balance - Beginning $282,995 $702,471

Fund Balance - Ending $287,386 $703,331

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2020
Reserve $414,875  
Revenue $288,456

$703,331  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2020
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

15



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $566,300 $0 $0 $0
Interest $0 $0 $922 $922

TOTAL REVENUES $566,300 $0 $922 $922

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2021
Interest Expense - 11/1 $178,213 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 05/1 $210,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $178,213 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $566,425 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) ($125) $922

Fund Balance - Beginning $180,734 $747,672

Fund Balance - Ending $180,609 $748,594

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2021 AA3 PH1
Reserve $566,450  
Revenue $182,144

$748,594  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2021

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
October 31, 2022

Assessment Area 3 Phase 1

16



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $149,100 $0 $0 $0
Interest $0 $0 $242 $242

TOTAL REVENUES $149,100 $0 $242 $242

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2021
Interest Expense - 11/1 $47,378 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 05/1 $50,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $47,378 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $144,755 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $4,345 $242

Fund Balance - Beginning $47,384 $196,615

Fund Balance - Ending $51,729 $196,857

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2021 AA3 PH2
Reserve $149,384  
Revenue $4
Capitalized Interest $47,470

$196,857  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2021

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
October 31, 2022

Assessment Area 3 Phase 2

17



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $460,875 $0 $0 $0
Interest $0 $0 $751 $751

TOTAL REVENUES $460,875 $0 $751 $751

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2021
Interest Expense - 11/1 $147,938 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 05/1 $165,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $147,938 $0 $0 $0
Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $460,875 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $751

Fund Balance - Beginning $147,963 $609,238

Fund Balance - Ending $147,963 $609,989

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2021 AA2 PH3B
Reserve $460,875  
Revenue $889
Capitalized Interest $148,226

$609,989  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2021

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
October 31, 2022

Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B

18



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
Developer Contributions/Due to Developer

Funding Prepare Check# Received Payment Total General Capital 2017 Capital 2020 Capital 2021 PH1 Capital 2021 PH2 Capital Over and
Request Date Date Amount Funding Fund (Due to (Due to (Due to & 3B (Due to (Due to (short)

# Request Portion (FY23) Developer) Developer) Developer) Developer) Developer) Balance Due

1 10/8/21 WIRE 11/17/21 $52,473.46 $52,473.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1-2020 10/29/21 WIRE 11/23/21 $789,634.53 $789,634.53 $0.00 $0.00 $789,634.53 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

1-2017NW 11/15/21 VOID VOID $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2-2020 11/15/21 WIRE 121/21 $14,948.00 $14,948.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,948.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1-CS 11/15/21 WIRE 11/23/21 $35,584.97 $35,584.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,584.97 $0.00

2-2017NW 11/25/21 WIRE 12/15/21 $162,698.80 $162,698.80 $0.00 $162,698.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3-2020 11/25/21 WIRE 12/15/21 $175,836.84 $175,836.84 $0.00 $0.00 $175,836.84 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4-2020 11/25/21 WIRE 12/15/21 $2,635.00 $2,635.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,635.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2-CS 12/8/21 WIRE 12/15/21 $64,923.00 $64,923.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $64,923.00 $0.00

3-2017NW 12/20/21 WIRE 2/14/22 $1,792.50 $1,792.50 $0.00 $1,792.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
5-2020 1/31/22 WIRE 2/14/22 $179,979.16 $179,979.16 $0.00 $0.00 $179,979.16 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3-CS 1/31/22 WIRE 2/14/22 $42,066.89 $42,066.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42,066.89 $0.00

5-CS 3/21/22 WIRE 
12/1/2021, 2/14/22 

& 4/28/22 $138,419.23 $138,419.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $138,419.23 $0.00 *
6-2020 3/21/22 WIRE 2/14/22 $1,486.78 $1,486.78 $0.00 $0.00 $1,486.78 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 *
6-CS 3/31/22 WIRE 4/13/22 $11,300.00 $11,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,300.00 $0.00

1-2021 3/31/22 WIRE 4/28/22 $179,639.14 $179,639.14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $179,639.14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7-CS 4/13/22 WIRE 5/6/22 $67,561.50 $67,561.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $67,561.50 $0.00

2-2021 4/13/22 WIRE 5/6/22 $431,723.46 $431,723.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $431,723.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3-2021 5/10/22 WIRE 5/17/22 $1,424,223.39 $1,424,223.39 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,424,223.39 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
8-CS 5/12/22 WIRE 5/31/22 $69,225.64 $69,225.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $69,225.64 $0.00

4-2017NW 5/17/22 WIRE 5/31/22 $313,111.89 $313,111.89 $0.00 $313,111.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4-2021 6/1/22 WIRE 6/29/22 $1,352,446.62 $1,352,446.62 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,352,446.62 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
5-2021 6/15/22 WIRE 6/29/22 $351,030.34 $351,030.34 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $351,030.34 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7-2020 6/15/22 WIRE 6/29/22 $16,330.00 $16,330.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,330.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
9-CS 6/15/22 WIRE 6/29/22 $49,209.50 $49,209.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49,209.50 $0.00

10-CS 7/20/22 WIRE 8/16/22 $31,040.38 $31,040.38 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,040.38 $0.00
6-2021 7/20/22 WIRE 8/23/22 $1,157,787.65 $1,157,787.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,157,787.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
11-CS 8/10/22 WIRE 8/31/22 $184,200.25 $184,200.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $184,200.25 $0.00
7-2021 8/10/22 WIRE 8/31/22 $886,950.07 $886,950.07 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $886,950.07 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1-2021 8/10/22 WIRE 8/31/22 $856,392.56 $856,392.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $856,392.56 $0.00 $0.00
2-2021 9/14/22 WIRE 9/27/22 $1,645,696.33 $1,645,696.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,645,696.33 $0.00 $0.00
8-2021 9/14/22 WIRE 9/27/22 $972,287.05 $972,287.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $972,287.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
12-CS 9/14/22 WIRE 9/27/22 $42,728.85 $42,728.85 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42,728.85 $0.00
13-CS 10/13/22 WIRE 11/1/22 $18,812.15 $18,812.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,812.15 $0.00
8-2020 10/13/22 WIRE 11/1/22 $852.80 $852.80 $0.00 $0.00 $852.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
9-2021 10/13/22 WIRE 11/1/22 $1,024,140.28 $1,024,140.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,024,140.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3-2021 10/12/22 WIRE 11/1/22 $1,269,316.21 $1,269,316.21 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,269,316.21 $0.00 $0.00

Due to Developer $14,018,485.22 $14,018,485.22 $0.00 $477,603.19 $1,181,703.11 $7,780,228.00 $3,771,405.10 $755,072.36 $0.00

Total Developer Contributions FY23 $0.00

*Reallocate funds from 12/1/21 & 2/14/22 wire

19



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest Income $0 $0 $3 $3

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $3 $3

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $3

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $3

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $2,180

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2,183
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $2,183  
$2,183

October 31, 2022

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2007A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

21



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest Income $0 $0 $838 $838

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $838 $838

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $838

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $838

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $648,796

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $649,634
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $646,437
Due from General Fund $4,153
Due to Capital Projects Series 2017A ($956)

$649,634

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2016A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

22



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest Income $0 $0 $2 $2

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $2 $2

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $2

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $2

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $1,232

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $1,234
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $1,234
$1,234

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2016B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

23



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $1 $1

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $1 $1

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction NW Parcel $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $1

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $1

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 ($223,371)

Fund Balance - Ending $0 ($223,370)
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $0
Construction - NW Parcel $908
Due from Capital Projects Series 2016A $956
Due from General Fund $1,000
Contracts Payable ($226,234)

($223,370)

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2017A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

24



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $2

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $2
$2

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2017B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

25



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest $0 $0 $7 $7

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $7 $7

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $7

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $7

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $183

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $191
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $191
Due from Developer $853
Contracts Payable ($853)

$191

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2020
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

October 31, 2022

26



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 ($286,282)

Fund Balance - Ending $0 ($286,282)
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $188
Due from Developer $1,024,140
Retainage Payable ($1,310,610)

($286,282)

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2021

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
October 31, 2022

Assessment Area 3 Phase 1

27



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $1,957 $1,957

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $1,957 $1,957

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Outlay - Cost of Issuance $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $1,957

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $1,957

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $1,265,042

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $1,266,998
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $1,266,998
$1,266,998

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2021

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
October 31, 2022

Assessment Area 3 Phase 2

28



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22 THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Outlay - Cost of Issuance $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $5

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $5
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $5
Due from Developer $1,269,316
Contracts Payable ($1,269,316)

$5

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2021
Assessment Area 2 Phase 3B

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
October 31, 2022

29



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2022

10/25/21 275A Six Mile Creek CDD Repayment for Nitelites Invoice #60835 5,333.00$          
10/25/21 276A Onsight Industries, LLC Invoice #002-20-284396D - Trailmark Phase 6 Mailbox 11,601.00$        
12/30/21 277A Six Mile Creek CDD Reimbursement - FPL Streetlight Relocation - Bill # 1800263636 525.63$             
12/30/21 278A Clary & Associates, Inc. Invoice #2016-323-8 - Phase 4 Set Permanent Control Points 2,000.00$          
3/25/22 279A Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Payment #7712-1 - Trailmark East Phases 4, 5 & 8 - Overlay & Repair 365,066.40$      
6/7/02 280A Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Application #1 - Trialmark East Phase 4B Repairs - Feb. 2022 70,423.00$        
6/7/22 281A Six Mile Creek CDD Reimbursement - Adkins Electric Invoice #G21658-01 850.00$             

7/20/22 282A Vice Painting LLC Invoice #241-01 - Pressure Washing & Painting Services 4,895.00$          
9/26/22 283A Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Retainage 2 - Trailmark East Phases 4, 5 & 8 Overlay & Repair 40,562.93$        

TOTAL 501,256.96$      

Fiscal Year 2022
10/1/21 Interest 2.72$                 

10/27/21 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 595341 Utility Reimbursement 129,777.27$      
11/1/21 Interest 2.75$                 
12/1/21 Interest 3.06$                 
1/3/22 Interest 3.16$                 
2/1/22 Interest 3.15$                 
3/1/22 Interest 2.79$                 

3/11/22 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 598201 Utility Reimbursement 122,129.38$      
4/1/22 Interest 1.95$                 
5/2/22 Interest 2.05$                 

5/17/22 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 600754 Utility Reimbursement 40,709.80$        
6/1/22 Interest 2.20$                 

6/28/22 Transfer from Cost of Issuance 1,339.38$          
7/1/22 Interest 1.98$                 

7/18/22 Transfer from Cost of Issuance 0.01$                 
8/1/22 Interest 1.97$                 

8/31/22 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 603478 Utility Reimbursement 221,161.23$      
9/1/22 Interest 314.64$             
9/1/22 Interest 0.95$                 

TOTAL 515,460.44$      

631,395.85$      
515,460.44$      

(501,256.96)$    

645,599.33$      

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2023
10/3/22 Interest 837.61$             

TOTAL 837.61$             

645,599.33$      
837.61$             

-$                  

646,436.94$      

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/21
Interest Earned thru 9/30/22

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A

30



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2022

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2022
10/1/21 Interest -$                  
11/1/21 Interest -$                  
12/1/21 Interest -$                  
1/3/22 Interest -$                  
2/1/22 Interest -$                  
3/1/22 Interest -$                  
4/1/22 Interest -$                  
5/2/22 Interest -$                  
6/1/22 Interest -$                  

6/28/22 Transfer from Cost of Issuance 1,230.44$          
7/1/22 Interest -$                  
8/1/22 Interest 0.01$                 
9/1/22 Interest 0.81$                 

TOTAL 1,231.26$          

1.20$                 
1,231.26$          

-$                  

1,232.46$          

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2023
10/3/22 Interest 1.52$                 

TOTAL 1.52$                 

1,232.46$          
1.52$                 
-$                  

1,233.98$          

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/21
Interest Earned thru 9/30/22

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

31



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2022

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2022
10/1/21 Interest -$                  
11/1/21 Interest -$                  
12/1/21 Interest -$                  
1/3/22 Interest -$                  
2/1/22 Interest -$                  
3/1/22 Interest -$                  
4/1/22 Interest -$                  
5/1/22 Interest -$                  
6/1/22 Interest -$                  
7/1/22 Interest -$                  
8/1/22 Interest -$                  
9/1/22 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

0.23$                 
-$                  
-$                  

0.23$                 

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2023
10/3/22 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

0.23$                 
-$                  
-$                  

0.23$                 

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/21
Interest Earned thru 9/30/22

32



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2022

12/1/21 46 - VOID Onsight Industries, LLC Invoice #002-20-284396-1 - Trailmark Phase 6 Mailbox 6 - Oct.21 -$                  
12/15/21 47 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Application #12 & 13RET - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 & Lot 4D Lot Refill - Oct.21 162,698.80$      
2/14/22 48 Clary & Associates, Inc. Invoice #2021-889 - Phase 6 Benchmark Information - Oct.21 1,792.50$          
5/31/22 49 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Application #1 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 Tree Removal Lot Fill - Apr.22 281,800.70$      
5/31/22 50 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Application #2 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 Tree Removal Lot Fill - Apr.22 31,311.19$        

TOTAL 477,603.19$      

Fiscal Year 2022
10/1/21 Interest -$                  
11/1/21 Interest -$                  
12/1/21 Interest -$                  
12/1/21 WIRE FY22 Funding Request #1-2017NW - VOID -$                  

12/15/21 WIRE FY22 Funding Request #2-2017NW 162,698.80$      
1/3/22 Interest -$                  
2/1/22 Interest -$                  

2/14/22 WIRE FY22 Funding Request #3-2017NW 1,792.50$          
3/1/22 Interest -$                  
4/1/22 Interest -$                  
5/2/22 Interest -$                  

5/31/22 WIRE FY22 Funding Request #4-2017NW 313,111.89$      
6/1/22 Interest -$                  
7/1/22 Interest -$                  
8/1/22 Interest -$                  
9/1/22 Interest 0.60$                 

TOTAL 477,603.79$      

906.03$             
477,603.79$      

(477,603.19)$    

906.63$             

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2023
10/1/21 Interest 1.12$                 

TOTAL 1.12$                 

906.63$             
1.12$                 
-$                  

907.75$             

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A-NW Parcel

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/21
Interest Earned thru 9/30/22

33



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2022

2/14/22 48 Clary & Associates, Inc. Invoice #2021-889 - Phase 6 Benchmark Information - Oct.21 1,792.50$          

TOTAL 1,792.50$          

Fiscal Year 2022
10/1/21 Interest -$                  
11/1/21 Interest -$                  
12/1/21 Interest -$                  
1/3/22 Interest -$                  
2/1/22 Interest -$                  

2/14/22 WIRE FY22 Funding Request #3-2017NW 1,792.50$          
3/1/22 Interest -$                  
4/1/22 Interest -$                  
5/2/22 Interest -$                  
6/1/22 Interest -$                  
7/1/22 Interest -$                  
8/1/22 Interest -$                  
9/1/22 Interest -$                  

TOTAL 1,792.50$          

1.88$                 
1,792.50$          

(1,792.50)$        

1.88$                 

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2023
10/3/22 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.88$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.88$                 

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/21
Interest Earned thru 9/30/22

34



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

10/13/22 160 England-Thims & Miller Invoice #204199 - Trailmark EP PH1 Amenity Center (WA#62) - July 2022 2,562.50$          
10/21/22 161 England-Thims & Miller Invoice #204589 - Trailmark EP PH1 Amenity Center (WA#62) - August 2022 3,137.50$          

TOTAL 5,700.00$          

Fiscal Year 2023
10/3/22 Interest 7.25$                 

TOTAL 7.25$                 

5,883.35$          
7.25$                 

(5,700.00)$        

190.60$             

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2020
Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

35



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

TOTAL -$                    

Fiscal Year 2023
10/3/22 Interest 0.23$                   

TOTAL 0.23$                   

187.90$               
0.23$                   
-$                    

188.13$               

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021
Assessment Area 3, Phase 1

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

36



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

10/21/22 31 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #203180 - Trailmark Phase 10 CEI (WA#66) - May 2022 3,628.00$          
10/21/22 32 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #203513 - Trailmark Phase 10 CEI (WA#66) - July 2022 6,012.50$          
10/21/22 33 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #205180 - Trailmark Phase 10 CEI (WA#66) - Sept. 2022 11,078.50$        
10/21/22 34 Besch & Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #5 - Trailmark Phase 10 - Sept. 2022 190,688.62$      

TOTAL 211,407.62$      

Fiscal Year 2023
10/3/22 Interest 1,956.90$          

TOTAL 1,956.90$          

1,476,449.16$   
1,956.90$          

(211,407.62)$    

1,266,998.44$   

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021
Assessment Area 3, Phase 2

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

37



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2023

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2023
10/3/22 Interest 0.01$                 

TOTAL 0.01$                 

4.82$                 
0.01$                 
-$                  

4.83$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 10/31/22

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021
Assessment Area 2, Phase 3B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/22
Interest Earned thru 10/31/22

38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



GROSS ASSESSMENTS 3,289,438$       1,204,035$             228,094$          469,798$          739,752$          441,600$          206,160$          
NET ASSESSMENTS 3,092,072$       1,131,793$             214,408$          441,610$          695,367$          415,104$          193,790$          

O&M - GENERAL 2015 2016A 2017A 2020 2021 PH1
DATE GROSS ASSESSMENTS DISCOUNTS/ COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET AMOUNT & REVERIE FUNDS DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE DEBT SERVICE TOTAL

RECEIVED DIST. RECEIVED PENALTIES PAID INCOME RECEIVED 36.60% 6.93% 14.28% 22.49% 13.42% 6.27% 100%

-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  
-$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  

TOTALS -$                               -$              -$                 -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  

LENNAR HOMES LLC $97,113.16 $33,300.00 $63,813.16

DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL SERIES
 RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND 2021 PH1

10/15/22 8,325.00$            -$                 -$                        -$                 
1/1/23 8,325.00$            -$                 -$                        -$                 
4/1/23 52,994.21$          -$                 -$                        -$                 
7/1/23 8,325.00$            -$                 -$                        -$                 

9/30/23 19,143.95$          -$                 -$                        -$                 
97,113.16$          -$                 -$                        -$                 

DFC REVERIE. LLC $761,875.00 $193,500.00 $107,500.00 $460,875.00

DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL REVERIE SERIES
 RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND FUND 2021 PH3B

11/4/22 10/15/22 12014822 75,250.00$          75,250.00$       48,375.00$             26,875.00$       -$                 
11/4/22 1/1/23 12014822 75,250.00$          75,250.00$       48,375.00$             26,875.00$       -$                 
11/4/22 4/1/23 12014822 397,862.50$        397,862.50$     48,375.00$             26,875.00$       322,612.50$     
11/4/22 7/1/23 12014822 75,250.00$          75,250.00$       48,375.00$             26,875.00$       -$                 
11/4/22 9/30/23 12014822 138,262.50$        138,262.50$     -$                        -$                 138,262.50$     

761,875.00$        761,875.00$     193,500.00$           107,500.00$     460,875.00$     

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC $564,871.88 $99,512.30 $7,417.62 $308,841.96 $149,100.00

DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL SERIES SERIES SERIES
 RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND 2017AB 2021 PH1 2021 PH2

10/15/22 24,878.07$          -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 
1/1/23 24,878.07$          -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 
4/1/23 348,404.49$        -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 
7/1/23 24,878.09$          -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 

9/30/23 141,833.16$        -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 
564,871.88$        -$                 -$                        -$                 -$                 -$                 

SIX MILE CREEK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS - FY2023

TAX COLLECTOR

DIRECT BILLED ASSESSMENTS

20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



  

Fund Date Check No.'s Amount
General Fund 10/5/22 4195-4207 49,488.27$                        

10/11/22 4208-4215 26,092.20$                        
10/19/22 4216-4224 4,731.16$                          
10/25/22 4225-4232 21,786.83$                        

102,098.46$                      

Reverie Fund
10/5/22 55-57 10,826.33$                        
10/11/22 58-60 950.95$                             
10/19/22 61-63 3,223.62$                          

15,000.90$                        

Payroll October 2022
Darren Glynn 50131 184.70$                             
Gregg Kern 50132 184.70$                             

Michael Taylor 50133 184.70$                             
Wendy Hartley 50134 184.70$                             

738.80$                             

117,838.16$             

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Summary of Check Register

October 1, 2022 to October 31, 2022



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/09/22          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 10/31/2022 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/05/22 00139 9/28/22 AE092822 202209 320-53800-34500                                     *              330.00
SECURITY SRVC - 09/28/22

ADAM EMINISOR                                                     330.00 004195
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00118 10/01/22 17181413 202210 330-53800-46600                                     *              245.16

MTHLY LAWN TREATMNT-OCT22
BUG OUT SERVICE, LLC                                              245.16 004196

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00170 10/01/22 8105281  202210 320-53800-46200                                     *           19,151.83

LANDSCAPE SERVICES OCT22
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                            19,151.83 004197

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00173 10/01/22 1502     202209 320-53800-12300                                     *              162.60

RENTAL MONITOR 9/17-9/21
ELITE AMENITIES NE FLORIDA LLC                                    162.60 004198

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00053 9/23/22 801838   202209 330-53800-46800                                     *              270.00

QTRLY PEST CONTROL SEP22
FLORIDA PEST CONTROL & CHEMICAL CO.                               270.00 004199

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00001 9/15/22 161      202210 310-51300-31700                                     *            7,500.00

FY23 ASSESSMENT ROLL CERT
10/01/22 162      202210 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,166.67

MANAGEMENT FEES OCT22
10/01/22 162      202210 310-51300-35200                                     *               66.67

WEBSITE ADMIN OCT22
10/01/22 162      202210 310-51300-35100                                     *              108.33

INFORMATION TECH OCT22
10/01/22 162      202210 310-51300-31300                                     *              625.00

DISSEMINATION FEE OCT22
10/01/22 162      202210 310-51300-51000                                     *                5.98

OFFICE SUPPLIES
10/01/22 162      202210 310-51300-42000                                     *              296.93

POSTAGE
10/01/22 162      202210 310-51300-42500                                     *              167.25

COPIES
10/01/22 162      202210 310-51300-41000                                     *               90.57

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                               12,027.40 004200

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00181 9/30/22 3112205  202208 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,647.00

BRD MTG/FUND AGR/ASMT/BGT
9/30/22 3112207  202208 310-51300-31500                                     *              258.50

NOT.ASMT HEAR/EXP.PARCEL
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  1,905.50 004201

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/09/22          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 10/31/2022 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/05/22 00148 9/14/22 1719     202210 320-53800-47300                                     *            8,007.83
CLUBHOUSE HOLIDAY LGHTING

M&G BUSINESS VENTURES INC DBA                                   8,007.83 004202
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00137 9/28/22 RN092822 202209 320-53800-34500                                     *              165.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 09/19/22
9/28/22 RN092822 202209 320-53800-34500                                     *              110.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 09/20/22
9/28/22 RN092822 202209 320-53800-34500                                     *              330.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 09/21/22
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             605.00 004203

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00024 9/19/22 556887-1 202209 330-53800-43100                                     *            3,838.41

805 TRAILMARK DR - SEP22
9/19/22 556887-1 202209 330-53800-43100                                     *               34.59

295 BACK CREEK DR - SEP22
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                   3,873.00 004204

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00039 10/01/22 6768B    202210 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,675.00

MTHLY LAKE SERVICES OCT22
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,675.00 004205

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00084 10/01/22 22-45238 202210 320-53800-34600                                     *               34.95

MTHLY FIRE ALARM MNTR OCT
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                                34.95 004206

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00164 10/03/22 18549    202210 320-53800-46600                                     *            1,200.00

INST.BUSH-HOG 5LOT DOLCET
TREE AMIGOS OUTDOOR SERVICES INC                                1,200.00 004207

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00139 10/07/22 AE100722 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              220.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/07/22
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     220.00 004208

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00170 9/27/22 8106301  202209 320-53800-46201                                     *            2,073.48

INST.FALL ANNUAL FLOWERS
9/28/22 8111258  202209 320-53800-46300                                     *              848.00

INST.RAINBIRD-BASKETBALL
9/28/22 8111258  202209 320-53800-46300                                     *            1,238.01

RPR MAINLINE ALONG FENCE
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                             4,159.49 004209

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00141 9/03/22 SEPT22-2 202209 330-53800-46500                                     *            1,575.00

MTHLY POOL SERVICE SEP22
CROWN POOL CLEANING, INC                                        1,575.00 004210

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/09/22          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 10/31/2022 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/11/22 00162 10/01/22 2210     202209 320-53800-47700                                     *              206.00
PET STATION MAINT OCT22

DOODY DADDY                                                       206.00 004211
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00005 10/04/22 35324-12 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *               91.00

596 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
10/04/22 52068-78 202209 330-53800-43000                                     *               94.03

801 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
10/04/22 57119-05 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *               26.17

170 RED TWIG WAY - SEP22
10/04/22 62363-50 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *            4,535.42

000 PACETTI RD - SEP22
10/04/22 65107-18 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *               25.66

975 TRAILMARK DR #IRRG
10/04/22 68881-76 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *              183.70

990 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
10/04/22 88213-81 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *               33.95

1922 TRAILMARK DR #LS
10/04/22 96815-95 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *               28.83

2799 PACETTI RD #ENTRY
10/04/22 96904-98 202209 330-53800-43000                                     *            1,304.11

805 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
10/05/22 93295-44 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *              216.35

404 BLOOMFIELD WAY #PUMP
10/07/22 18745-94 202209 320-53800-43000                                     *               31.82

2282 TRAILMARK DR #LS
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                           6,571.04 004212

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00099 10/06/22 62674    202209 320-53800-47600                                     *           10,444.00

BRILL PAR/STAKE/CAP/WIRES
OUTDOOR LIGHTING SOLUTIONS, LLC                                10,444.00 004213

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00028 10/01/22 148      202210 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,541.67

JANITORIAL SERVICES OCT22
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                              1,541.67 004214

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00137 10/07/22 RN100722 202209 320-53800-34500                                     *              165.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 09/19/22
10/07/22 RN100722 202209 320-53800-34500                                     *              110.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 09/20/22
10/07/22 RN100722 202209 320-53800-34500                                     *              330.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 09/21/22
10/07/22 RN100722 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              110.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/03/22
10/07/22 RN100722 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              660.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/06/22
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                           1,375.00 004215

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/09/22          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 10/31/2022 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/19/22 00200 10/11/22 BH101122 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              520.00
SECURITY SRVCS - 10/07/22

BRANDON GENE MICHAEL HETZLER II                                   520.00 004216
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00138 10/19/22 CM101922 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              275.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/17/22
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                275.00 004217

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00022 10/05/22 204901   202209 310-51300-31100                                     *            1,836.00

GEN.CONSLT.ENG.SVC(WA#56)
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                     1,836.00 004218

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00028 10/13/22 149      202209 320-53800-47500                                     *               45.68

PICKED UP SUPPLIES SEP22
10/13/22 149      202209 320-53800-46900                                     *              711.60

TRASH BAGS/TP/GYM WIPES
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                                757.28 004219

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00098 10/17/22 51251A   202210 300-15500-10000                                     *              625.00

ROOM RENT 11/16/22,SPEAKR
RENAISSANCE WORLD GOLF VILLAGE                                    625.00 004220

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00004 9/09/22 4924920  202210 310-51300-48000                                     *              233.92

RFP TRAILMARK AMNTY EXP.
CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS, LLC                                          233.92 004221

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00196 10/19/22 SE101922 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              385.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/08/22
SAMANTHA ENGLISH                                                  385.00 004222

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00034 10/06/22 21101409 202209 330-53800-43200                                     *               31.06

801 TRAILMARK DR - SEP22
TECO PEOPLES GAS                                                   31.06 004223

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00117 9/22/22 23292583 202209 330-53800-51000                                     *               67.90

INKCART/BADGE/CLIP/HGHLTR
W.B. MASON CO.,INC.                                                67.90 004224

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/25/22 00139 10/19/22 AE101922 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              275.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/19/22
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     275.00 004225

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/25/22 00170 10/18/22 8127253  202210 320-53800-46600                                     *            1,729.49

RIVERSTONE DR-JCKFRST/LIR
10/18/22 8127259  202210 320-53800-46600                                     *              700.00

RED TWIG-CUTDWN/INST.TREE

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/09/22          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 10/31/2022 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/18/22 8127271  202210 320-53800-46600                                     *              593.60
HURRICANE-RMV PINE TREE

10/18/22 8127272  202210 320-53800-46600                                     *              659.56
HURRICANE-RMV FALLEN TREE

BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                             3,682.65 004226
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/25/22 99999 10/25/22 VOID     202210 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 004227

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/25/22 00033 9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202208 320-53800-46000                                     *              511.17

PICKLEBALL CTRL-PRMNT NET
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202208 320-53800-46100                                     *                4.79

VKA SECURITY-KEY RPLCMNT
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202208 320-53800-51000                                     *              259.29

AMAZON-CARD GAME/TOY/GIFT
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202208 320-53800-46000                                     *              645.00

WILSON-RPLC AMENITY LGHT
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202208 300-20700-10800                                     *              115.88

PUBLIX-TEA/BISCUIT/CASHEW
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202208 300-20700-10800                                     *              118.59

PUBLIX-PANCAKE/FRUIT/BLND
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202208 320-53800-47200                                     *              114.54

PUBLIX-FRUIT/SNACKS/MINT
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37

MANAGEMENT FEES SEP22
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-12200                                     *            3,360.00

ONSITE PERSONNEL SEP22
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-46000                                     *               86.08

ACE TURNER-TRFC SEED/EPXY
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-47700                                     *               44.96

ACE TURNER-TRFC/GRSS SEED
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-51000                                     *               44.21

AMAZON-GITD PWDR/BEAN BAG
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-51000                                     *               27.66

AMAZON-2 RING TOSS SETS
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-46600                                     *              985.09

POND GUY-MUCKAWAY/ECOBST
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 330-53800-51000                                     *              395.00

CHRIS HERRICK-MAGIC SHOW
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-46900                                     *              120.07

AMAZON-DUSTER KIT/FLAGS
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-46000                                     *              200.00

COOPER ELECTRIC-GYM LGHTS
9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-51000                                     *              936.68

NOAH LANDING-LIFESTYLES

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/09/22          PAGE   6
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 10/31/2022 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-49100                                     *              449.45
AMEX PROCESSING FEE SEP22

9/30/22 SMCCDD09 202209 320-53800-49100                                     *               11.45
PBLX PROCESSING FEE SEP22

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT,LLC                            13,355.28 004228
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/25/22 00137 10/21/22 RN102122 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              220.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/20/22
10/25/22 RN102522 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              440.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/24/22
10/25/22 RN102522 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              330.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/25/22
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             990.00 004229

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/25/22 00024 10/19/22 556887-1 202210 330-53800-43100                                     *            2,451.10

805 TRAILMARK DR - OCT22
10/19/22 556887-1 202210 330-53800-43100                                     *               34.59

295 BACK CREEK DR - OCT22
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                   2,485.69 004230

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/25/22 00153 10/25/22 SS102522 202210 320-53800-34500                                     *              220.00

SECURITY SRVCS - 10/08/22
SAMUEL D SHEFFIELD II                                             220.00 004231

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/25/22 00128 10/20/22 600128   202210 330-53800-46501                                     *              778.21

SV CALL-INST CHEMICAL PMP
VAK PAK, INC.                                                     778.21 004232

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                102,098.46

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              102,098.46

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/09/22          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 10/31/2022 ***       REVERIE

BANK B REVERIE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/05/22 00004 9/23/22 719859   202209 340-53800-34500                                     *               70.00
ADDITIONAL RESIDENT SEP22

9/23/22 719859A  202210 340-53800-34500                                     *               70.00
ADDITIONAL RESIDENT OCT22

HIDDEN EYES LLC DBA ENVERA SYSTEMS                                140.00 000055
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00010 9/18/22 1720     202210 340-53800-47300                                     *            5,081.66

INST.REVERIE HOLIDAY DCOR
M&G BUSINESS VENTURES INC DBA                                   5,081.66 000056

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/05/22 00003 9/30/22 18601    202209 340-53800-46200                                     *            5,604.67

LANDSCAPE MAINT SEP22
TREE AMIGOS OUTDOOR SERVICES INC                                5,604.67 000057

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00002 10/01/22 2210-RT  202210 340-53800-47700                                     *              103.00

REV-PET STATION MNT OCT22
DOODY DADDY                                                       103.00 000058

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00001 10/06/22 04551-38 202209 340-53800-43000                                     *              220.20

16 DAYBREAK DR - SEP22
10/06/22 23340-53 202209 340-53800-43000                                     *              109.31

255 RUSTIC MILL DR-SEP22
10/06/22 72968-38 202209 340-53800-43000                                     *               26.59

18 WOODWIND CT - SEP22
10/06/22 97807-53 202209 340-53800-43000                                     *               26.11

82 BERRY BLOSSOM WAY
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                             382.21 000059

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/22 00005 9/19/22 556887-1 202209 340-53800-43100                                     *              465.74

35 RUSTIC MILL - SEP22
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                     465.74 000060

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00009 9/22/22 W54539   202209 340-53800-46000                                     *              347.00

SVC CALL-CHK PWR/GFCI/LBL
AMERICAN ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING,INC                               347.00 000061

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00004 10/01/22 720315   202210 300-15500-10000                                     *            2,271.62

ALARM MONITOR SRVC NOV22
HIDDEN EYES LLC DBA ENVERA SYSTEMS                              2,271.62 000062

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/19/22 00003 10/12/22 18675    202210 340-53800-46300                                     *              605.00

RPR 7ROTORS ON DMG RISERS
TREE AMIGOS OUTDOOR SERVICES INC                                  605.00 000063

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                 15,000.90

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 11/09/22          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2022 - 10/31/2022 ***       REVERIE

BANK B REVERIE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               15,000.90

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 






















































































































































































































































	Agenda
	III.       Affidavit of Publication 
	IV.       Approval of Minutes of the October 19, 2022 Meeting 
	VI. Consideration of Resolution 2023-02, Levying Master Assessment Lien for 2022 Bonds 
	VII.     Ratification Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates for Fiscal Year 2022 Audit 
	VIII. Ratification of Fitness Lease (Trailmark Center)
	IX. Consideration of Deed Conveying Common Area Parcels
	X.        Easement Regarding Traffic Signal 
	XIII. B. Engineer Items
	D.        Operations / Amenity Manager - Report 
	     XV.   A.   Balance Sheet as of October 31, 2022 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the Period Ending October 31, 2022
	B.        Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	            C.        Check Register 



